CHENNAI METROPOLITAN WATER SUPPLY AND SEWERAGE BOARD



NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING Contract No : CNT / NCB / WSS / GOTN / PART – II / 2400 /2013-14

BID DOCUMENT

FOR

Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board

VOLUME I

INVITATION FOR BIDS INSTRUCTION FOR BIDDERS CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT CONTRACT DATA

SUPERINTENDING ENGINEER (Contracts & Monitoring)

CHENNAI METROPOLITAN WATER SUPPLY & SEWERAGE BOARD No.1, Pumping Station Road, Chintadripet, Chennai 600 002. Phone No. 044 28451300 Extn.253 Fax No. 044-28454336 Email : secm@chennaimetrowater.com secandm@gmail.com

| NAME OF WORK : | Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board |
|--|---|
| CONTRACT NO. : | CNT/ /NCB/WSS/GOTN/ PART- II/ 2400/2013-14 |
| PERIOD OF SALE OF BIDDING DOCUMENT : | FROM 27.06.2013 TO 15.07.2013 |
| DATE OF PRE BID MEETING: | 02.07.2013 at 11.30 AM |
| LAST DATE AND TIME FOR RECEIPT OF BIDS : | DATE 16.07.06.2013 TIME 15.00 HOURS |
| DATE AND TIME OF OPENING OF TECHNICAL BIDS : | DATE 16.07.2013 TIME 15.30 HOURS |
| COMPLETION PERIOD OF CONTRACT : | 5 MONTHS and three years O&M after commissioning of the project |
| OFFICER INVITING BIDS : | SUPERINTENDING ENGINEER (Contracts & Monitoring) CMWSS BOARD No.1, Pumping Station Road Chintadripet Chennai-600 002 Telephone: 044-28451300 Extn: 253 |
| PLACE OF RECEIVING AND OPENING OF BIDS : | OFFICEOFTHESUPERINTENDING ENGINEER (Contracts & Monitoring) CMWSS BOARD No.1, Pumping Station Road Chintadripet Chennai-600 002 Telephone: 044-28451300 Extn: 253 |
| ADDRESS FOR PURCHASE: | INFORMATION FACILITATION OFFICER, CMWSS BOARD No.1, Pumping Station Road Chintadripet Chennai-600 002 Telephone: 044-28451300 Extn: 209 |

CONTENTS

| SI. No. | Description | Page No. |
|---------|---|----------|
| 1 | Notice Inviting Tender (NIT) | 3 |
| 2 | Special Instructions for submission of Technical Bids | 5 |
| 2.a | Instructions to Bidders | 7 |
| 3 | Forms of Bid and Qualification Information | 24 |
| 4 | Conditions of Contract | 38 |
| 5 | Contract Data | 75 |
| 6 | Forms of Securities | 83 |
| 7 | Technical Specifications | 87 |
| 8 | Bill of Quantities | 88 |
| 9 | Declaration | 89 |

CHENNAI METROPOLITAN WATER SUPPLY AND SEWERAGE BOARD No.1 Pumping station Road, Chindatripet, Chennai-600 002

NOTICE INTIVING TENDER

NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING

Sealed bids are invited from the eligible bidders for the following works. Bidding will be conducted through National Competitive Bidding procedures of CMWSS Board under two cover system conforming to the Tamil Nadu Transparency in Tenders Act, 1998 and Rules 2000.

| S. No. | Name of work and Tender No. | Bid security Rs. | Sale period | Due date & Time for submission of bids | Contract Period |
|-----------|--|---------------------|--------------------------------|---|---|
| 1. | Automation of 37 sewage pumping stations in CMWSS Board – Package - 1 CNT/NCB/SEW/ GOTN/ Part- II/2395 / 2013-14 | 3,14,000/- | 27.06.2013 To 29.07.2013 | Upto 03.00 PM on 30.07.2013 | 6 months for supply, delivery, installation testing and commissioning and 3 Years Operation and Maintenance contract after commissioning of project |
| 2 | Automation of 37 sewage pumping stations in CMWSS Board – Package - 2 CNT/NCB/SEW/ GOTN/ Part-II/2396/ 2013-14 | 2,90,000/- | 27.06.2013 To 29.07.2013 | Upto 03.00 PM on 30.07.2013 | 6 months for supply, delivery, installation testing and commissioning and 3 Years Operation and Maintenance contract after commissioning of project |
| 3 | Automation of 42 sewage pumping stations in CMWSS Board – Package- 3 CNT/NCB/SEW/ GOTN/ Part-II/2397 / 2013-14 | 3,18,000/- | 27.06.2013 To 29.07.2013 | Upto 03.00 PM on 30.07.2013 | 6 months for supply, delivery, installation testing and commissioning and 3 Years Operation and Maintenance contract after commissioning of project |
| 4 | Automation of 36 sewage pumping stations in CMWSS Board – Package - 4 CNT/NCB/SEW/ GOTN/ Part-II/2398 / 2013-14 | 3,02,000/- | 27.06.2013 To 29.07.2013 | Upto 03.00 PM on 30.07.2013 | 6 months for supply, delivery, installation testing and commissioning and 3 Years Operation and Maintenance contract after commissioning of project |
| 5 | Automation of 35 sewage pumping stations in CMWSS Board – Package - 5 CNT/NCB/SEW/ GOTN/ Part-II/2399 / 2013-14 | 2,93,000/- | 27.06.2013 To 29.07.2013 | Upto 03.00 PM on 30.07.2013 | 6 months for supply, delivery, installation testing and commissioning and 3 Years Operation and Maintenance contract after commissioning of project |
| 6 | Inline Water Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board CNT/NCB/WSS/ GOTN/ Part-II/2400 / 2013-14 | 78,000/- | 27.06.2013 To 15.07.2013 | Upto 03.00 PM on 16.07.2013 | 5 months for supply, delivery, installation testing and commissioning and 3 Years Performance based Operation and maintenance contract after commissioning of project |

| S. No. | Name of work and Tender No. | Bid security Rs. | Sale period | Due date & Time for submission of bids | Contract Period | | |
|-----------|---|---|---|---|--|--|--|
| 7.i | Date of Pre-Bid meeting | | For SI. No. 1 to 5 – on 12.07.2013 at 11.30 AM For SI. No. 6 – on 02.07.2013 at 11.30 AM | | | | |
| 7.ii. | Due date and time for opening of Bids | | For SI. No. 6 - O | n 16.07.2013 at happens to be | e a holiday the Bid will be | | |
| 8.i. | Availability of Bid Document in pe | rson | Information & Factor Pumping Station | acilitation Office Road, Chintadri | er, CMWSS Board, No.1 | | |
| 8.ii. | Through website | | www.chennaimetrowater.tn.nic.in & www.tenders.tn.gov.in The bid document can downloaded free of cost and should be bounded in separate volumes along with necessary enclosures while submission of tender | | | | |
| 9. | Cost of Bid Document | | form of cash Nationalized/Sch CMWSS Board. main on an extra | or DD/Pay eduled Bank in The document a advance paym lloaded docume | set per work payable in the Order drawn from a favour of Managing Director, will also be sent by surface thent of Rs.2000/- per set per ent from the web site can be st. | | |
| 10. | Address for information and clarif and for receipt of bids | Office of Superin Contracts & Mon No.1, Pumping S Chennai – 600 0 Phone No. 044-2 FAX : 044-2845 4 Email : <u>secm@cl</u> | tending Enginee itoring, CMWSS tation Road, Ch 02 845 1300 Extn 4336 | er, Board, intadripet, . 253 | | | |

SUPERINTENDING ENGINEER (CONTRACTS & MONITORING) 2. SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF TECHNICAL BIDS

Special Instructions for submission of Technical Bids

- 1. All pages in the Technical Bid (Both Original and Copy) should be page numbered sequentially.
- All pages of the Technical bid (both original and copy) should be signed by authorized signatory whose name should be communicated to CMWSSB with office seal without any omission
- All credentials including the Notarized copies of performance certificates and Bankers certificates enclosed for the bids should be identified as the documents submitted by the bidder over their signature with office seal
- 4. Any document / credential submitted without signature of authorized persons will not be considered for evaluation.
- 5. Bidders should produce the originals for the performance / client certificate for verification whenever required with the copies of those certificates enclosed along with the bid.
- 6. Bidder should furnish all the details pertaining to the Qualification Criteria in Abstract Qualification Information and sign the declaration with full signature. If the space available in the Table is insufficient, additional sheets may be furnished in the specified format separately with declaration.

SECTION 2.a INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS (ITB)

2.a : Instructions to Bidders

| | Table of Clauses | P.No | | | P.No |
|-----|---------------------------------------|------|-----|--------------------------------------|------|
| Α. | General | | Ε. | Bid Opening and Evaluation | |
| 1. | Scope of Bid | 9 | 23. | Bid Opening | 19 |
| 2. | Source of Funds | 9 | 24. | Process to be Confidential | 19 |
| 3. | Eligible Bidders | 9 | 25. | Clarification of Bids & | 20 |
| 4. | Qualification of the Bidder | 9 | | contacting Employer | |
| 5. | One Bid per Bidder | 12 | 26. | Examination of Bids and Deter- | |
| 6. | Cost of Bidding | 12 | | mination of Responsiveness | 20 |
| 7. | Site Visit | 12 | 27. | Correction of Errors | 20 |
| В. | Bidding Documents | | 28. | Currency for Bid Evaluation | 20 |
| 8. | Content of Bidding Documents | 12 | 29. | Evaluation and Comparison of Bids | 21 |
| 9. | Clarification of Bidding Documents | 12 | | | |
| 10. | Amendment of Bidding Documents | 13 | 30. | Preference for Domestic Bidders | 21 |
| C. | Preparation of Bids | | F. | Award of Contract | |
| 11. | Language of Bid | 13 | 31. | Award Criteria | 21 |
| 12. | Documents Comprising the Bid | 13 | 32. | Employer's Right to Accept any | |
| 13. | Bid Prices | 14 | | Bid and to Reject any / all Bids | 21 |
| 14. | Currencies of Bid and Payment | 14 | 33. | Notification of Award & | |
| 15. | Bid Validity | 14 | | Signing of Agreement | 21 |
| 16. | , | 14 | 34. | Performance Security | 22 |
| 17. | Alternative Proposals by Bidders | 15 | 35. | Advance Payment and Security | 23 |
| 18. | Format and Signing of Bid | 15 | 36. | Adjudicator | 23 |
| D. | Submission of Bids | | 37. | Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices | 23 |
| 19 | Sealing and Marking of Bids | 15 | | | |
| 20 | Deadline for Submission of Bids | 18 | | | |
| 21 | Late Bids | 18 | | | |
| 22 | Modification, substitution | 18 | | | |
| | and Withdrawal of Bids | | | | |

A. General

1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 The Chennai Metropolitan Water Supply and Sewage Board (CMWSSB) (referred to as Employer in these documents) invites bids for "Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board" (as defined in these documents and referred to as "the works")) detailed in the table given in Invitation for Bids. The bidders may submit bids for any or all the works detailed in the table given in Invitation for Bid.
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works by the intended completion date specified in the Contract data.
- 1.3 Throughout these Bidding documents, the terms bid and Tender and their derivatives (bidder/Tenderer, bid/tendered, bidding/Tendering, etc) are synonymous and day means calendar day. Singular also means plural.

2. Source of Funds

2.1 Eligible payment under the contract for this works will be made from GOTN funds.

3. Eligible Bidders

- **3.1** All bidders except those who have been debared/banned by the Board/Govt of Tamil Nadu are eligible to bid for the tender
- **3.2** All bidders shall provide in Section 3, Forms of Bid and all Qualification Information required under this contract.

3.3 DELETED

3.4 Bidders shall not be under a declaration of ineligibility for corrupt and fraudulent practices in accordance with sub-clause 37.1.

4. Qualification of the Bidder

- **4.1** All bidders shall provide in Forms of Bid and Qualification Information, a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary.
- **4.2** Pre-qualification was not undertaken for this contract.
- **4.3** All bidders shall include the following information and documents with their bids in Forms of Bid and Qualification Information.
 - (a) Copies of original documents defining the constitution or legal statutes, place of registration and principal place of business, written power of attorney of the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder.
 - (b) Total monetary value of contracted works performed during the qualifying period.
 - (c) Experience in works of a similar nature and details of work carried out during the qualifying period and details of works under way or contractually committed and clients who may be contacted for further information on those contracts.
 - (d) Major items of construction equipment proposed to carry out the contract;
 - (e) Qualifications and experience of key management and technical personnel proposed for the Contract;

- (f) Reports on the financial standing of the Bidder, such as profit and loss statements and auditor's reports for the past five years;
- (g) Evidence of adequacy of working capital for this contract (access to line (s) of credit and availability of other financial resources);
- (h) Authority to seek references from the Bidder's bankers;
- (i) Information regarding any litigation, current or during the last eight years, in which the Bidder is involved, the parties concerned, and disputed amount;
- (j) Proposals for subcontracting components of the Works amounting to more than ten percent of the Contract Price; (for each, qualifications and experience of the identified sub contractor in the relevant field should be annexed)
- (k) The proposed methodology and program of construction, backed with equipment planning and deployment, duly supported with broad calculations and quality control procedures proposed to be adopted, justifying their capability of execution and completion of work within the stipulated period of completion as per Mile stones.
- (I) All the credentials furnished by the Bidders towards the satisfying the qualification criteria shall be duly certified by a "Notary Public".
- (m) The credentials to meet the qualification criteria for serial no2 to 5 of eligibility criteria shall be from the Client / Employer not below the rank of Executive Engineer. No selfcertification will be accepted.

4.4 Deleted

4.5 A. To qualify for award of the contract, each bidder should have performed / executed the following during the period from 01-04-2008 to 31-03-2013 as detailed below.

| S. No. | Description | Minimum required qualification |
|-----------|---|--------------------------------|
| 1. | Must have achieved in any financial year during 2008- 2009 to 2012-2013 Annual financial turn-over not less than the amount given (Rupees in Lakhs) | Rs. 135.00 Lakhs |
| 2. | Satisfactorily completed any single work of value not less than the amount (Rupees in Lakhs) | Rs. 54.00 lakhs |
| 3. | Should have successfully supplied, installed and commissioned projects with the following components of work | |
| i. | Inline quality monitoring system | 1 No. |
| ii. | GSM/GPRS connectivity | 1 No |
| 4 | Bidder should be authorized by OEM for supply of inline water quality monitoring unit specifically for this job | |
| 5 | Bidder should possess ISO 9001 – 2008 certification | |

For SI.No.2 to 5 above the experience of the bidder as on the date of submission of bid will be considered for evaluation.

- Consortium bids are not acceptable
- The bids of the Contractors whose previous performance is found to be poor / not satisfactory, will not be taken up for evaluation.

• Financial turnover and cost of completed works of previous years shall be given weightage of 6% per year based on rupee value to bring them to 2013-2014 price level.

B. Each bidder should further demonstrate:

(a) Availability (either owned or leased or by procurement against mobilization advances) of the following key and critical equipment for this work:

| - | Pipe tapping equipment | 2 nos. | |
|---|------------------------------------|--------|------------|
| - | Multimeter | 1no. | 0-500 V AC |
| - | Set of Crimping Tool for all sizes | | |
| | of Cables (Copper & Aluminium) | 1set | |
| | Tester | 1no. | 2 KV HV |
| - | Clip on type Ammeter | 1no. | 0-500 A |

The bidders should, however, undertake their own studies and furnish with their bid, a detailed project planning and methodology supported with layout and necessary drawings and calculations (detailed) as stated in clause 4.3 (k) above to allow the Employer to review their proposals. The numbers, types and capacities of each plant/equipment shall be shown in the proposals along with the cycle time for each operation for the given production capacity to match the requirements.

- (b) availability for this work of a Project Manager with minimum of 10 years experience in a Project of size similar to the present work and other key personnel with adequate experience as indicated in the contract data; and
- (c) Liquid assets and/or availability of credit facilities of not less than Rs 27.00 Lakhs. (*Credit lines/letter of credit/certificates from Banks for meeting the funds requirement etc.*) to be drawn in the name of prime contractor.

C. DELETED

4.6 Deleted

4.7 Bidders who meet the minimum qualification criteria A will be qualified only if their available bid capacity is more than the value put to tender. The available bid capacity will be assessed at the time of evaluation of Technical Bids itself. In case of the Bidders who do not satisfy the requirement of the Bid Capacity their Bid will be treated as non-responsive and their Price Bids will not be opened.

The available bid capacity will be calculated as under:

Assessed Available Bid capacity = (AxNx1.5 - B)

A = Maximum value of engineering works executed in any one year during the last five years (updated to 2013-2014 price level) taking into account the completed as well as works in progress.

N = Number of years prescribed for completion of the works for which bids are invited (5/12).

where

- B = Value, at 2013-2014 price level, of existing commitments and on-going works to be completed during the next five months.
- **Note:** The statements showing the value of existing commitments and on-going works as well as the stipulated period of completion remaining for each of the works listed should be countersigned by the Engineer in charge, not below the rank of an Executive Engineer or equivalent.

- **4.8** Even though the bidders meet the above qualifying criteria, they are subject to be disqualified if they have:
 - made misleading or false representations in the forms, statements and attachments submitted in proof of the qualification requirements; and/or
 - record of poor performance such as abandoning the works, not properly completing the contract, inordinate delays in completion, litigation history, or financial failures etc. and/or
 - participated in the previous bidding for the same work and had quoted unreasonably high bid prices and could not furnish rational justification to the Employer.

5. One Bid per Bidder

5.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid by himself. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid will be disqualified.

6. Cost of Bidding

6.1 The bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his Bid, and the Employer will in no case be responsible and liable for those costs.

7. Site visit

7.1 The Bidder, at the Bidder's own responsibility and risk is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of Works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for the Works. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.

B. Bidding Documents

8. Content of Bidding Documents

- **8.1** The set of bidding documents comprises the documents listed in the table below and addenda issued in accordance with Clause 10:
 - 1 Invitation for Bids
 - 2 Instruction to Bidders
 - 3 Forms of Bid and Qualification Information
 - 4. Conditions of Contract
 - 5 Contract Data
 - 6 Forms of Securities
 - 7 Technical Specifications
 - 8 Bill of Quantities
 - 9 Drawings
- **8.2** Of the three sets of the bidding documents supplied, two sets should be completed and returned with the bid.

9. Clarification on Bidding Documents

9.1 A prospective bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding documents may notify the Employer in writing by Mail / e-mail / Facsimile at the Employer's address indicated in the Invitation for Bids. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification, which he receives from prospective bidders 48 hours prior to the deadline for submission of bids. Copies of the Employer's response will be forwarded to all purchasers of the bidding documents, including a description of the enquiry but without identifying its source.

9.2 Pre-bid meeting

- 9.2.1 The bidder or his official representative is invited to attend a pre-bid meeting which will take place at Chennai Metropolitan Water Supply and Sewerage Board, No.1 Pumping station Road, Chintadripet, Chennai 600002 on 2.07.2013 at 11.30 hrs.
- **9.2.2** The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.
- **9.2.3** The bidder is requested to submit any questions in writing or by cable to reach the Employer not later than one week before the meeting.
- **9.2.4** Minutes of the meeting, including the text of the questions raised (without identifying the source of enquiry) and the responses given will be transmitted without delay to all purchasers of the bidding documents. Any modification of the bidding documents listed in Sub-Clause 8.1 which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to Clause 10 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- **9.2.5** Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.

10. Amendment of Bidding Documents

- **10.1** Before the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may modify the bidding documents by issuing addenda.
- **10.2** Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents and shall be communicated in writing to all the purchasers of the bidding documents. Prospective bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing to the Employer.
- **10.3** To give prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Employer shall extend as necessary the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.2 below.

C. Preparation of Bids

11. Language of the Bid

11.1 All documents relating to the bid shall be in the English language.

12. Documents comprising the Bid

12.1 The bid submitted by the bidder shall comprise the following:

First Cover - Technical Bid

- (a) Bid Security;
- (b) Technical Bid
- (c) Qualification Information Form and Documents;
- (d) The Bid (in the format indicated in Forms of bid, Qualification Information and letter of acceptance)

Second Cover - Financial Bid

(e) Priced Bill of Quantities;

and any other materials required to be completed and submitted by bidders in accordance with these instructions. The documents listed under Sl.No. 3, and 9 of Sub-Clause 8.1 shall be filled in without exception.

12.2 Bidders bidding for this contract together with other contracts stated in the IFB/NIT to form a package will so indicate in the bid together with any discounts offered for the award of more than one contract.

13. Bid Prices

- **13.1** The contract shall be for the whole works as described in Sub-Clause 1.1, based on the priced Bill of Quantities submitted by the Bidder.
- **13.2** The bidder shall fill in rates and prices and line item total (both in figures and words) for all items of the Works described in Bill of Quantities along with total bid price (both in figures and words). *Items for which no rate or price is entered by the bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the Bill of Quantities.* Corrections, if any, shall be made by crossing out, initialing, dating and rewriting.
- **13.3** All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause shall be included in the rates, prices and total Bid Price submitted by the Bidder.
- **13.4** The rates and prices quoted by the bidder shall be fixed for the duration of the contract and shall not be subject to adjustment on any account.

14. Currencies of Bid and Payment

14.1 The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the bidder entirely in "Indian Rupees" (INR)

15. Bid Validity

- **15.1** Bids shall remain valid for a period not less than **one hundred and twenty days** after the deadline date for bid submission specified in Clause 20. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- **15.2** In exceptional circumstances, prior to expiry of the original time limit, the Employer may request that the bidders may extend the period of validity for a specified additional period. The request and the bidders' responses shall be made in writing. A bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting his bid security. A bidder agreeing to the request will not be required or permitted to modify his bid, but will be required to extend the validity of his bid security for a period of the extension, and in compliance with Clause 16 in all respects.
- 15.3 Deleted

16. Bid Security

16.1 The Bidder shall furnish, as part of his Bid, a Bid security in the amount as shown in NIT for this particular work. This bid security is to be furnished in the form of Bank draft /Pay order drawn on any Nationalised / Scheduled Bank in favour of Managing Director, CMWSSB payable at Chennai

The Bank guarantee towards Bid security will not be accepted

16.2 Deleted

16.3 Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable Bid Security and not secured as indicated in Sub-Clauses 16.1 above shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.

- **16.4** The Bid Security of unsuccessful bidders will be returned as promptly as possible upon award of contract. Employer shall pay no interest on the bid security.
- **16.5** The Bid Security of the successful bidder will be discharged when the bidder has signed the Agreement and furnished the required Performance Security.
- **16.6** The Bid Security should be forfeited
 - (a) if the Bidder withdraws the Bid after opening of Technical Bid during the period of Bid validity;
 - (b) if the Bidder does not accept the correction of the Bid Price, pursuant to Clause 27; or
 - (c) in the case of a successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails within the specified time limit to
 - (i) sign the Agreement; or
 - (ii) furnish the required Performance Security.
- **17.0** Alternative Proposals by Bidders
- **17.1** Alternative proposal will not be considered
- 18. Format and Signing of Bid
- **18.1** The Bidder shall prepare one original and one copy of the documents comprising the bid as described in Clause 12 of these *Instruction to Bidders*, bound with the volume containing the Forms of Bid and clearly marked **"ORIGINAL"** and **"COPY"** as appropriate. In the event of discrepancy between them the original shall prevail.
- **18.2** The original and copy of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, pursuant to Sub Clauses 4.3. All pages of the bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the bid.
- **18.3** The Bid shall contain no alterations or additions, except those to comply with instructions issued by the Employer, or as necessary to correct errors made by the bidder, in which case the person or persons signing the bid shall initial such corrections.
- **18.4** The Bidder shall furnish information as described in the Form of Bid on commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents relating to this Bid, and to contract execution if the Bidder is awarded the contract.

D. Submission of Bids

19. Sealing and Marking of Bids

19.1 The tender shall be submitted in two (2) parts viz. **PART - A and PART - B.** Each part shall be placed in an independent sealed envelope.

Each part shall be labeled as follow

| PART - A | : | TECHNICAL BID ENVELOPE |
|---------------|---|---|
| Contract No | : | CNT/ /NCB/WSS/GOTN/ PART- II/ 2400 /2013-14 |
| Name of Work | : | Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board |
| Due date/time | : | 16.07.2013 @ 15.00 HRS. |

PART – A : TENDER PRICE ENVELOPE Contract No : CNT/ /NCB/WSS/GOTN/ PART- II/2400 /2013-14

Name of Work : Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board

- **19.2** The contents of each of the two (2) envelopes shall be as described in the subsequent clauses. For all further references, these envelopes will be referred to briefly as:
 - Technical Bid Envelope
 - Tender Price Bid Envelope
 - The envelope containing Part A and the envelope containing Part B shall be placed inside an outer envelope and shall be labeled as follows:
 - Bid for : Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board

This envelope contains two (2) independent sealed envelopes as follows:

| PART - A | : | Technical Tender Envelope |
|-----------------|---|---|
| PART - B | : | Tender Price Envelope |
| Contract No. | : | CNT/ /NCB/WSS/GOTN/ PART- II/2400/2013-14 |
| Due date & time | : | 16.07.2013 @ 15.00 HRS. |

19.3 The envelope shall be addressed to : The Superintending Engineer (Contracts & Monitoring) Chennai Metropolitan Water Supply and Sewerage Board No.1 Pumping Station Road, Chintadripet, Chennai 600 002

Each envelope shall carry the name and address of the Tenderer prominently.

- **19.4** The Technical Tender Envelope shall contain the following in the sequence indicated below. The technical tender shall be submitted in two copies.
 - i. Covering letter
 - ii. Performance Certificate obtained from the clients as per Qualification Information
 - iii. The Bid Security
 - iv. Letter of Tender/ Contractor's Bid with signature of the authorized signatory with seal
 - v. Declaration by the Tenderer that his Tender is without any technical and commercial deviations in the format of the letter enclosed with the Tender.
 - vi. Certified Power of Attorney authorizing a representative or representatives of the Firm to sign the Tender and all subsequent communication
 - vii. Documentary evidence of unambiguous fulfillment of eligibility criteria for Tendering

- viii. Latest Income Tax Clearance Certificate and Sales Tax Clearance Certificate.
- ix. Tender document signed by the authorized signatory.
- x. Full technical description of the items and services proposed by the Tenderer including makes.
- xi. Details of Construction Equipment proposed for the execution of the works and makes.
- xii. Details of manpower proposed for the Project Management and Site Management including qualification and experience of the personnel.
- xiii. Work methodology and plan.
- xiv. Bar Chart and PERT charts for the execution of the works
- xv. Confirmation of performance guarantee and Defects Liability Period in accordance with Clause 35 of the Conditions of Contract.
- xvi. Confirmation of the commercial terms and conditions. There shall be no reference to the price
- xvii. List of concurrent commitments including a schedule of contracts under execution including values, percentage of works completed and the schedule date of completion of the work.
- xviii. Any other technical details
- **19.5** The "Technical Tender Envelope" shall **NOT** contain the following:
 - i. Schedule of Prices of the Tender Document constituting the Lump Sum Tender Price.
 - ii. Any indication either direct or indirect or implicit or explicit or implied regarding the Tender Price or its break up details or any other related price indication etc. shall be a cause for outright disqualification of the entire Tender.
- **19.6** The envelope labeled, as "Tender Price Envelope" shall contain the following in the sequence indicated below. This shall be submitted as two copies 1 original and 1 copy.
 - i. Covering letter
 - ii. The Tender Price for the work with each page signed, dated and stamped with the seal of the Firm.
 - iii. Apart from the Schedule of Prices and Annexure duly filled in, Tenderers shall not enclose any other documents or statements that influence the price except the discounted rebate letter. In such an event the Board shall summarily disqualify the Tenderer and reject the Tender.
- **19.7** The Bidder shall seal the original and copy of the Bid in separate envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as "**ORIGINAL**" and "**COPY**". These envelopes (called as inner envelopes) shall then be put inside one outer envelope.
- 19.8 The inner and outer envelopes shall
 - (a) be addressed to the Employer at the following address: The Superintending Engineer (C & M)

CMWSSB, No.1, Pumping Station Road,

Chintadripet, Chennai -600 002

(b) Bear the following identification:

-

- Bid for[name of contract]
- Bid Reference No.....[insert number]
- Do not open before[time and date for bid opening, as per Clause 20]
- **19.9** In addition to the identification required in Sub-Clause 19.2, the inner envelopes shall indicate the name and address of the bidder to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared late, pursuant to Clause 21.
- **19.10** If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, <u>the Employer will assume no</u> responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.

20. Deadline for Submission of the Bids

- **20.1** Bids must be received by the Employer at the address specified above not later than 15.00 Hours on **16.07.2013**. In the event of the specified date for the submission of bids declared a holiday for the Employer, the Bids will be received upto the appointed time on the next working day.
- **20.2** The Employer may extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with Clause 10, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and the bidders previously subject to the original deadline will then be subject to the new deadline.

21. Late Bids

21.1 Any Bid received by the Employer after the deadline prescribed in Clause 20 will be returned unopened to the bidder.

Any Bid submitted in person after 3.00 PM. on the due date will not be accepted. Similarly, any bid received by post after 3.00 PM. on the due date will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the bidder. Hence, the bidders are requested to submit their bid well in advance i.e., before 3.00 PM. as per the Office Clock on the dead line / extended deadline date and time of bid submission. The bidders can submit the bids on any day during the bid submission period.

22. Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

- **22.1** Bidders may modify or withdraw their bids by giving notice in writing before the deadline prescribed in Clause 20.
- **22.2** Each Bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared, sealed, marked, and delivered in accordance with Clause 18 & 19, with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "**MODIFICATION**" or "**WITHDRAWAL**", as appropriate.
- **22.3** No bid may be modified after the deadline for submission of Bids.
- **22.4** Withdrawal or modification of a Bid between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the original period of bid validity specified in Clause 15.1 above or as extended pursuant to Clause 15.2 may result in the forfeiture of the Bid security pursuant to Clause 16.

22.5 Bidders may only offer discounts to, or otherwise modify the prices of their Bids by submitting Bid modifications in accordance with this clause,

E. Bid Opening and Evaluation

23. Bid Opening

- **23.1** The Employer will open the technical tender envelope of all the Bids received (except those received late), including modifications made pursuant to Clause 22, in the presence of the Bidders or their representatives who choose to attend at **15.30** hrs. on the date and the place specified in Clause 20. In the event of the specified date of Bid opening being declared a holiday for the Employer, the Bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day.
- **23.2** Envelopes marked "**WITHDRAWAL**" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to Clause 22 shall not be opened.
- **23.3** The Bidders' names, Bid modifications and withdrawals, the presence or absence of Bid security, and such other details as the Employer may consider appropriate, will be announced by the Employer at the opening. Bids (and modifications) sent pursuant to Clause 22 that are not opened and read out at bid opening will not be considered for further evaluation regardless of the circumstances. Withdrawn bids will be returned unopened to bidders. The tender price envelope will not be opened on the same day but on another day in the presence of the qualified Tenderers or their authorised representatives. The date and time of opening the tender price envelope will be advised to the qualified Tenderer in writing.
- **23.4** The Employer shall prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with Sub-Clause 23.3.
- **23.5** Bidding procedure: Two cover bidding procedure will be adopted and will be processed as detailed below:-

Bids (in two covers) must be delivered in the address given below on or before 15.00 hrs. office time on **16.07.2013**. The first cover (Technical Tender envelope) will consist of Bid Security and a Technical Bid in two separate covers without any reference to prices and the second cover (Price Tender Envelope) will consist of Price Bid only.

Late bids and Bids without Bid Security will be summarily rejected.

The First cover will be opened in the presence of bidders' representative who choose to attend at the address given below at **15.30 hrs office time on 16.07.2013.**

Following the evaluation procedures by the employer on the bid security and the technical qualification contained in the first cover, the employer will subsequently open the second cover (Price Tender Envelope) of the Bidders who meet the minimum acceptable qualification criteria and who has submitted a technically responsive bid. Only the price bids of those bidders whose bids are found technically responsive and acceptable will be opened on the date and time to be intimated later and the price bids will be evaluated.

24. Process to Be Confidential

24.1 Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and comparison of Bids and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until the award to the successful

Bidder has been announced. Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Employer's processing of Bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of his Bid.

25. Clarification of Bids

- **25.1** To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of Bids, the Employer may, at his discretion, ask any Bidder for clarification of his Bid, including breakdowns of unit rates. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing but no change in the price or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the Bids in accordance with Clause 27.
- **25.2** Subject to sub-clause 25.1, no Bidder shall contact the Employer on any matter relating to its bid from the time of the bid opening to the time the contract is awarded. If the Bidder wishes to bring additional information to the notice of the Employer, it should do so in writing.
- **25.3** Any effort by the Bidder to influence the Employer in the Employer's bid evaluation, bid comparison or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidders' bid.

26. Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness

- **26.1** Prior to the detailed evaluation of Bids, the Employer will determine whether each Bid (a) meets the eligibility criteria defined in Clause 3; (b) has been properly signed; (c) is accompanied by the required securities and; (d) is substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding documents.
- **26.2** A substantially responsive Bid is one which conforms to all the terms and conditions of the Bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (a) which affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works; (b) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding documents, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or (c) whose rectification would affect unfairly the competitive position of other Bidder's presenting substantially responsive Bids.
- **26.3** If a Bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Employer, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non-conforming deviation or reservation.

27. Correction of Errors

- **27.1** Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the Employer for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the Employer as follows:
 - (a) where there is a discrepancy between the rates in figures and in words, lower of the two will govern; and
 - (b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern.
- **27.2** The amount stated in the Bid will be adjusted by the Employer in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and shall be considered as binding upon the Bidder. If the Bidder does not accept the corrected amount the Bid will be rejected, and the Bid security shall be forfeited in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.6 (b).

28. DELETED

29. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- **29.1** The Employer will evaluate and compare only the Bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with Clause 26.
- **29.2** In evaluating the Bids, the Employer will determine for each Bid the evaluated Bid Price by adjusting the Bid Price as follows:
 - (a) making any correction for errors pursuant to Clause 27; or
 - (b) making an appropriate adjustments for any other acceptable variations, deviations; and
 - (c) making appropriate adjustments to reflect discounts or other price modifications offered in accordance with Sub Clause 22.5.
- **29.3** The Employer reserves the rights to accept or reject any variation, deviation offer. Variations, deviations, and other factors, which are in excess of the requirements of the Bidding documents or otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for the Employer shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- **29.4** (not applicable)
- 29.5 If the Bid of the successful Bidder is seriously unbalanced in relation to the Engineer's estimate of the cost of work to be performed under the contract, the Employer may require the Bidder to produce detailed price analysis for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities, to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analysis, the Employer may require that the amount of the performance security set forth in Clause 34 be increased at the expense of the successful Bidder to a level sufficient to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the successful Bidder under the Contract.

30. DELETED

F. Award of Contract

31. Award Criteria

- **31.1** Subject to Clause 32, the Employer will award the Contract to the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the Bidding documents and who has offered the lowest evaluated Bid Price, provided that such Bidder has been determined to be (a) eligible in accordance with the provisions of Clause 3, and (b) qualified in accordance with the provisions of Clause 4.
- **31.2** If, pursuant to Clause 12.2 this contract is being let on a "slice and package" basis, the lowest evaluated Bid Price will be determined when evaluating this contract in conjunction with other contracts to be awarded concurrently, taking into account any discounts offered by the bidders for the award of more than one contract

32. Employer's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids

32.1 Notwithstanding Clause 31, the Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to cancel the Bidding process and reject all Bids, at any time prior to the award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or Bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or Bidders of the grounds for the Employer's action.

33. Notification of Award and Signing of Agreement

33.1 The Bidder whose Bid has been accepted will be notified of the award by the Employer prior to expiration of the Bid validity period by cable, telex or facsimile confirmed by registered letter. This letter (hereinafter and in the *Conditions of Contract* called the "Letter

of Acceptance") will state the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution, completion, and maintenance of the Works by the Contractor as prescribed by the Contract (hereinafter and in the Contract called the "Contract Price").

- **33.2** The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract, subject only to the furnishing of a performance security in accordance with the provisions of Clause 34.
- **33.3** The Agreement will incorporate all agreements between the Employer and the successful Bidder. On payment of the performance security (as per Clause 34.1 within 15 days of receipt of the Letter of Acceptance) by the successful bidder, the Employer will issue an unfilled document to the bidder who has to arrange for affixing the special adhesive stamp for a value not less than Rs.20/- and produce it back to the Employer. The Employer will then prepare complete set of document in which the Employer and successful bidder will sign. This exercise of signing the agreement should be completed within 10 days from the date of receipt of the performance security from the successful bidder.
- **33.4** Upon the furnishing by the successful Bidder of the Performance Security, the Employer will promptly notify the other Bidders that their Bids have been unsuccessful.

34 Performance Security

- **34.1** Within 15 days of receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the successful Bidder shall deliver to the Employer a Performance Security in any of the forms given below for an amount to be calculated as per Clause 34.5 plus additional security for unbalanced Bids in accordance with Clause 29.5 of ITB and Clause 52 of CC.
- 34.2 i) An irrevocable bank guarantee in the form given in Forms of Securities
 - ii) . Certified cheque/Bank Draft in favour of CMWSS Board payable at Chennai.
- 34.3 The performance security of a consortium shall be in the name of consortium. If the performance security is provided by the successful Bidder in the form of a Bank Guarantee, it shall be issued either (a) at the Bidder's option, by a Nationalised / Scheduled Indian bank or (b) by a foreign bank located in India and acceptable to the Employer. The Bank Guarantee shall be in the name of the successful bidder which has been obtained on the application made by the bidder to the banks. The Bank Guarantee in the name of successful bidder obtained by any other individual /Agency/Companies for the bidder will not be accepted.
- **34.4** Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirements of Sub-Clause 34.1 shall constitute sufficient grounds for cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security.
- **34.5** The value of performance security to be remitted for construction activity will be calculated by adopting the following formula:

| a) | For contracts within any plus percentage and upto minus 5% of the contract value for construction compared to the departmental estimated value for construction | 2% of contract value |
|----|---|----------------------|
| b) | For contracts above minus 5% and upto minus 15% compared to the departmental estimated value for construction | 4% of contract value |
| c) | For contracts which are more than minus 15% compared to the departmental estimated value for construction | 5% of contract value |

35 Advance Payment and Security

35.1 The Employer will provide an Advance Payment on the Contract Price as stipulated in the Conditions of Contract, subject to maximum amount, as stated in the Contract Data.

36. Adjudicator

36.1 The Employer proposes that Thiru. S.V. Pandiarajan be appointed as Adjudicator under the Contract, at a daily fee of Rs.2000/- plus boarding, lodging, travelling expenses at actual. If the Bidder disagrees with this proposal, the Bidder should so state in the Bid. If in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer has not agreed on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator shall be appointed by The President, Institution of Engineers (TamilNadu State Center) Chennai at the request of either party.

37. Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices

- **37.1** The Employer requires that Bidders observe the highest standard of ethics during the evaluation and execution of such contracts. In pursuance of this policy, the Employer:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of any thing of value to influence the action of a public official in the evaluation process or in contract execution; and
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence the evaluation process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Employer and includes collusive practice among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive the Employer of the benefits of free and open competition.
 - (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract in question;
 - (c) will declare a firm ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a contract if it at any time determines that the firm has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for, or in executing a contract.
- **37.2** Further more, Bidders shall be aware of the provision stated in sub-clause 59.2 of the Conditions of Contract.

3. FORMS OF BID AND QUALIFICATION INFORMATION

Table of Forms:

- CONTRACTOR'S BID
- ABSTRACT QUALIFICATION INFORMATION
- QUALIFICATION INFORMATION
- NOTICE TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK
- AGREEMENT FORM

Contractor's Bid

| Description of the Works | : | Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board |
|--------------------------|---|---|
| CONTRACT NO. | : | CNT/NCB/WSS/GOTN/ PART- II/ 2400/2013-14 |
| To Address | : | The Superintending Engineer (C & M) CMWSSB, No.1, Pumping Station Road, Chintadripet, Chennai600 002 |

GENTLEMEN,

We offer to execute the Works described above in accordance with the Conditions of Contract accompanying this Bid for the Contract Price stated in the Financial Bid.

We accept the proposal of advance Payment up to a maximum of **10%** of contract value for construction activities as per the Conditions prescribed by the Employer.

We accept the appointment of **Thiru. S.V. PANDIARAJAN** as the Adjudicator. (OR)

We do not accept the appointment of ______ as the Adjudicator and propose instead that ______ be appointed as Adjudicator whose daily fees and biographical data are attached.

This Bid and your written acceptance of it shall constitute a binding contract between us. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you receive.

We undertake that in competing for (and, if the award is made to us, in executing) the above contract, we will strictly observe the laws against fraud and corruption in force in India namely, "Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988).

Commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Bid, and to contract execution if we are awarded the contract, are listed below:

| Name and address of agent | <u>Amount</u> | Purpose | of | Commission | or |
|---------------------------|---------------|---------|----|------------|----|
| gratuity | | | | | |

(if none, state "none")

We hereby confirm that this Bid complies with the Bid Validity and Bid Security required by the Bidding documents.

We attach herewith our current income tax and sales tax clearance certificates.

| Yours faithfully, | |
|---------------------------|---|
| Authorized Signature | : |
| | |
| Name & Title of Signatory | : |
| Name of Bidder | : |
| Address | : |

ABSTRACT INFORMATION ON QUALIFICATION CRITERIA

Details of Performance Certificate Cited for Meeting Qualification Criteria during the qualifying period from 01.04.2008 to 31.03.2013 .

| SI. No | Qualification Criteria | | Details of the work indicating the Contract No., Value, Date of Completion etc of the work cited | Page No. of Tech. Bid | Name of the Client/ Officials who issued the Certificate with Contract details such as address, Telephone Number and Cell Number | Head of the Organizati on with complete contact address, Telephone Number, email address, etc |
|-----------|--|------------------------|---|--------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. | Must have achieved in any financial year during 2008- 2009 to 2012-2013 Annual financial turn-over not less than the amount given (Rupees in Lakhs) | Rs. 135.00 Lakhs | | | | |
| 2. | Satisfactorily completed any single work of value not less than the amount (Rupees in Lakhs) | Rs. 54.00 lakhs | | | | |
| 3. | Should have successfully supplied, installed and commissioned projects with the following components of work | | | | | |
| i. ii | Inline water quality monitoring system GSM/GPRS connectivity | 1 No. 1 No | | | | |
| | - | | | | | |
| 4 | Bidder should be authorized by OEM for supply of inline water quality monitoring unit specifically for this job | | | | | |

I / We declare that the information furnished above are true to our knowledge and we have taken care to furnish the correct details with contact address, available communication facilities such as FAX, email, Telephone numbers, Mobile numbers etc.

Signature of the bidder with Seal Name and Title of the Signatory

Qualification Information

The information to be filled in by the Bidder in the following pages will be used for purposes of prequalification as provided for in Clause 4 of the Instructions to Bidders. This information will not be incorporated in the Contract.

1. For Individual Bidders

1.1 Constitution or legal status of Bidder [Attach copy]

Place of registration:

Principal place of business:

Power of attorney of signatory of Bid [Attach]

1.2 Annual financial turnover achieved in the last five years. (in Rs. Lakhs)

| SI.No. | Year | Financial turnover (Rs. in Lakhs) * | Page No. of Technical Bid |
|--------|-----------|--|---------------------------------|
| | 2008-2009 | | |
| | 2009-2010 | | |
| | 2010-2011 | | |
| | 2011-2012 | | |
| | 2012-2013 | | |

• Attach a Certificate from Chartered Accountant.

Signature of the bidder with Seal Name & Title of Signatory:

IMPORTANT NOTE

Bidders are requested to furnish the above details separately giving reference to the page numbers of the credential enclosed to the Technical Bid.

1.3.1 Works performed by the Bidder works of a single Contract during the period upto the due date for submission of bids.

| Project Name | Name of the Employer* | Description of work | Contract No. | Value of contract (Rs. Lakhs) | Date of issue of work order | Stipulated period of completion | Actual date of completion * | Remarks explaining reasons for delay, if any and work |
|-----------------|-----------------------------|------------------------|-----------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---|
| | | | | | | | | completed |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |

* Enclose certificate(s) from Engineer(s)- in- charge.

Signature of the bidder with Seal Name & Title of Signatory:

IMPORTANT NOTE

Bidders are requested to furnish the Credentials in support of details of Qualification Information furnished above giving reference to the page numbers of the credentials enclosed to the Technical Bid.

The certificates / credentials not mentioned in the above statement will not be considered for evaluation towards satisfying the qualification criteria

| 1.3.2 | Quantities of work submission of bids. | executed by | y the bidder | during the | period upto f | he due date for |
|-------|--|-------------|--------------|------------|---------------|-----------------|
| | | | | | | |

| Year | Name of work | Name of Employer* | Quantity of work performed | Remarks (Indicate contract Ref.) * |
|---------|--------------|----------------------|----------------------------|--|
| 2008-09 | | | | |
| 2009-10 | | | | |
| 2010-11 | | | | |
| 2011-12 | | | | |
| 2012-13 | | | | |

@ The item of Work for which data is requested should fully satisfy with that specified in ITB clause 4.5

• Enclose certificate(s) from Engineer(s) - in -charge.

1.4 Information on Bid Capacity (works for which Bids have been submitted and works which are yet to be completed) as on the date of this Bid.

| Description of work | Place and state | Contract No. & Date | Name and Address of the Employer | Value of Contract (Rs. | Stipulated period of completion | Value of works remaining to be completed * | Anticipated date of completion |
|------------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------|--|------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|
| | otato | Duio | Employor | Lakhs) | oomplotion | (Rs.Lakh) | completion |
| (1) | (2) | (3) | (4) | (5) | (6) | (7) | (8) |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

A) Existing commitments and on-going works

* Enclose certificate(s) from Engineer(s)- in- charge.

Signature of the Bidder Name & Title of Signatory

1.4 B) Works for which Bids already submitted

| Description of work | Place and State | Name & Address of Employer | Estimated Value of works (Rs. Lakhs) | Stipulated period of completion | Date when decision is expected | Remarks if any |
|------------------------|--------------------|----------------------------------|---|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------------|
| (1) | (2) | (3) | (4) | (5) | (6) | (7) |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

1.5 The following items of Contractor's Equipment are essential for carrying out the Works. The Bidder should list all the information requested below. Refer also to sub -clause 4.3 (d) of the Instruction to Bidders.

| | Requirement Nos. Capacity | | Avail | Remarks | | |
|-------------------|---------------------------|---------------|--|--------------------|-------------------|---|
| Item of equipment | | | Owned / leased / to be procured | Nos. / Capacity | Age/ Condition | regarding condition and from whom to be purchased/ or leased |
| | Nos. | Nos. Capacity | | | | |

| | | 1 | | I |
|--|---|---------------|--|---|
| | | | | |
| Pipe tapping equipment | 1 | 50- 100 mm | | |
| Multimeter | 1 | 0-500 V AC | | |
| Set of Crimping Tool for all sizes of Cables (Copper & Aluminium) | 1 | | | |
| Tester | 1 | 2 KV HV | | |
| Clip on type Ammeter | 1 | 0-500 A | | |

1.6 Qualification and experience of key personnel proposed for administration and execution of the Contract. Attach biographical data. Refer also to sub-clause 4.3 (e) and 4.5 (B) (b) of Instructions to Bidders and sub clause 9.1 of Conditions of Contract.

| Position | Name | Qualifications | Years of experience (general) | Years of experience in the proposed position |
|-------------------------------|------|----------------|-------------------------------------|--|
| Project Manager | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Key Personnel | | | | |
| 1)Instrumentation Engineer | | | | |
| 2) Electrical Engineer | | | | |

1.7 Proposed subcontracts and firms involved. (Refer ITB Clause 4.3 (j))

| Sections of the works | Value of subcontract | Subcontractor (name and address) | Experience in similar work |
|-----------------------|----------------------|--|----------------------------|
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

- 1.8 Financial reports for the last five years; balance sheets, profit and loss statements, auditors' reports, (in case of companies/corporations) etc. List them below and attach copies of documents.
- 1.9 Evidence of access to financial resources to meet the qualification requirements: cash in hand, lines of credit, etc. List them below and attach copies of support documents. (*Sample format enclosed*)
- 1.10 Name, address and telephone, telex and fax numbers of the Bidders' bankers who may provide references if contacted by the Employer.
- 1.11 Information on litigation history in which the Bidder is involved.

| Other Party(ies) | Employer | Cause of Dispute | Amount Involved | Remarks showing present status |
|---------------------|----------|---------------------|--------------------|---|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

1.12 **DELETED**

1.13 Proposed work method and schedule. The Bidder should attach descriptions, drawings and charts as necessary to comply with the requirements of the Bidding documents. (Refer ITB Clause 4.1 and 4.3(k).

2.0 Deleted

3.0 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 Bidders should provide any additional information required to fulfill the requirements of clause 4 of the Instruction to Bidders, if applicable.

IMPORTANT NOTE

Bidders are requested to furnish the **INFORMATION ON LITIGATION HISTORY IN WHICH THE BIDDER INVOLVED in** the format prescribed separately along with full signature and Seal.

SAMPLE FORMAT FOR EVIDENCE OF ACCESS TO OR AVAILABILITY OF CREDIT FACILITIES -CLAUSE 4.5 (B) (c) OF ITB

BANK CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that M/s is a reputed company with a good financial standing.

If the contract for the work, namely is awarded to the above firm, we shall be able to provide overdraft/credit facilities to the extent of Rs. to meet their working capital requirements for executing the above contract.

Sd/ Name of Bank Senior Bank Manager Address of the Bank

Issue of Notice to proceed with the work (Letterhead of the Employer)

То

------ (Date)

_

———— (Name and address of the Contractor)

Dear Sirs:

Pursuant to your furnishing the requisite security as stipulated in ITB clause 34.1 and signing of the contract for ______ @ a Bid Price of Rs._____, you are hereby instructed to proceed with the execution of the said works in accordance with the contract documents.

Yours faithfully,

(Signature, name and title of signatory authorized to sign on behalf of Employer)

Agreement Form

| This agre | ement, | made the | | | da | y of | | 2013, |
|---------------|-------------|----------------|-----------|---------------|-----------|----------|------------------|--------------|
| between | | | | | | | | |
| | | [I | name ar | nd address of | Employer] | (hereina | fter called "the | e Employer)" |
| and | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | [name_and | address | of cont | ractor] (hereir | after called |
| "the Contra | ctor" of th | ne other part |). | | | | | |
| Whereas | the | Employer | is | desirous | that | the | Contractor | execute |
| identificatio | | r of Contrad | l (horoir | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | e Employer h | |
| | | | | | | | orks and the re | emedying of |
| any detects | s therein, | at a cost of I | ≺s | | | | | |

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement, words and expression shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to, and they shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement.
- 2. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in conformity in all aspects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 3. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying the defects wherein the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.
- 4. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz.:
 - i) Instruction to Bidders
 - ii) Letter of Acceptance;
 - iii) Notice to proceed with the works;
 - iv) Contractor's Bid;
 - v) Contract Data;
 - vi) Conditions Of Contract (General and Special);
 - vii) Technical Specifications;
 - ix) Bill of Quantities;

- x) Any other document listed in the Contract Data, replies to queries, clarificatons issued by the Department and such confirmation given by the Bidder which are accepted by the Board and all the Addendum issued as forming part of the contract.
- xi) Safety and preventive measures and digest of labour laws (CMWSSB)

In witness whereof the parties thereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first before written.

The Common Seal of

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:

Signed, Sealed and Delivered by the said

in the presence of:

Binding Signature of Employer

Binding Signature of Contractor

4. CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Conditions of Contract

Table of Contents

| A. General | Page No. | C. Quality Control | Page No. |
|---|-------------|--|-------------|
| 1. Definitions | 40 | 33. Identifying Defects | 48 |
| 2. Interpretation | 42 | 34. Tests | 48 |
| 3. Language and Law | 42 | 35. Correction of Defects | 48 |
| 4. Engineer's Decisions | 43 | 36. Uncorrected Defects | 48 |
| 5. Delegation | 43 | | |
| 6. Communications | 43 | | |
| 7. Subcontracting | 43 | D. Cost Control | |
| 8. Other Contractors | 43 | | |
| 9. Personnel | 43 | 37. Bill of Quantities | 49 |
| 10. Employer's & Contractors' Risks | 44 | 38. Changes in the Quantities | 49 |
| 11. Employers' Risks | 44 | 39. Variations | 49 |
| 12. Contractors' Risks | 44 | 40. Payments for Variations | 49 |
| 13. Insurance | 44 | 41. Cash Flow forecasts | 49 |
| Site Investigation Reports | 44 | 42. Payment Certificates | 49 |
| Queries about the Contract Data | 45 | 43. Payments | 50 |
| 16. Contractor to Construction the | | 44. DELETED | 50 |
| Works | 45 | 45. Tax | 50 |
| 17. The works to be completed by the | | 46. Currencies | 51 |
| Intended Completion Date | 45 | 47. Price adjustment | 51 |
| Approval by the Engineer | | 48. Retention | 51 |
| 19. Safety | 45 | 49. Liquidated Damages | 51 |
| 20. Discoveries | 45 | 50. Bonus for advance | 51 |
| 21. Possession of the Site | 45 | completion of work. | 51 |
| 22. Access to site | 46 | 51. Advance Payment | 51 |
| 23. Instructions | 46 | 52. Securities | 52 |
| 24. Disputes | 46 | 53. DELETED | 52 |
| 25. Procedure for Disputes | 46 | 54. Cost of Repairs | |
| 26. Replacement of Adjudicator | 46 | | |
| B. Time Control | 46 | E. Finishing the Contract | |
| B. Time Control | | 55. Completion | 52 |
| 27. Program | | 56. Taking Over | 52 |
| 28. Extension of the Intended | 47 | 57. Final Account | 52 |
| Completion Date | 47 | 58. Operating and | |
| 29. Acceleration | | Maintenance Manuals | 53 |
| 30. Delays Ordered by the Engineer | 47 | 59. Termination | 53 |
| 31. Management Meetings | 47 | 60. Payment upon | 53 |
| 32. Early Warning | 48 | Termination | |
| <u> </u> | | 61. Property | 54 |
| | | 62. Release from | 54 |
| | | Derformance | 0. |

F. Special Conditions of 55 Contract

54

Performance 63. DELETED

F. Special Conditions of Contract

Conditions of Contract

A. General

1. Definitions

1.1 Terms, which are defined in the Contract Data, and not also defined in the Conditions of Contract but keep their defined meanings. Capital initials are used to identify defined terms.

The **Adjudicator** is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in Clauses 24 and 25. The name of the Adjudicator is defined in the Contract Data.

Bill of Quantities means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities to be submitted by the Bidder.

The **Completion Date** is the date of completion of the Works as certified by the Engineer in accordance with Sub Clause 55.1.

The **Contract** is the contract between the Employer and the Contractor to execute, complete and maintain the Works. It consists of the documents listed in Clause 2.3 below.

The **Contract Data** defines the documents and other information, which comprise the Contract.

The **Contractor** is a person or corporate body whose Bid to carry out the Works has been accepted by the Employer.

The **Contractor's Bid** is the completed Bidding document submitted by the Contractor to the Employer.

The **Contract Price** is the price stated in the Letter of Acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

Days are calendar days; months are calendar months.

A **Defect** is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract.

The **Defects Liability Period** is the period named in the Contract Data and calculated from the Completion Date.

The **Employer** is the party who will employ the Contractor to carry out the Works.

The **Engineer** is the person named in the Contract Data (or any other competent person appointed and notified to the contractor to act in replacement of the Engineer) who is responsible for supervising the Contractor, administering the Contract, certifying payments due to the Contractor, issuing and valuing Variations to the Contract, awarding extensions of time, and valuing the Compensation Events.

Equipment is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the Works.

The **Initial Contract Price** is the Contract Price listed in the Employer's Letter of Acceptance.

The **Intended Completion Date** is the date on which it is intended that the Contractor shall complete the Works. The Intended Completion Date is specified in the Contract Data. The Intended Completion Date may be revised only by the Engineer by issuing an extension of time.

Materials are all supplies, including consumables, used by the contractor for incorporation in the Works.

Plant is any integral part of the Works, which is to have a mechanical, electrical, electronic, or chemical or biological function.

The Site is the area defined as such in the Contract Data.

Site Investigation Reports are those, which were included in the Bidding documents and are factual interpretative reports about the surface and sub-surface conditions at the site.

Specification means the Specification of the Works to be submitted by the Bidder and any modification or addition made or approved by the Engineer.

The **Start Date** is given in the Contract Data. It is the date when the Contractor shall commence execution of the works. It does not necessarily coincide with any of the Site Possession Dates.

A **Subcontractor** is a person or corporate body who has a Contract with the Contractor to carry out a part of the work in the Contract, which includes work on the Site.

Temporary Works are works designed, constructed, installed, and removed by the Contractor, which are needed for construction or installation of the Works.

A Variation is an instruction given by the Engineer, which varies the Works.

The **Works** are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and turn over to the Employer, as defined in the Contract Data.

2. Interpretation

- 2.1 In interpreting these Conditions of Contract, singular also means plural, male also means female or neuter, and the other way around. Headings have no significance. Words have their normal meaning under the language of the Contract unless specifically defined. The Engineer will provide instructions clarifying queries about the Conditions of Contract.
- **2.2** If sectional completion is specified in the Contract Data, references in the Conditions of Contract to the Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and Intended Completion date for the whole of the Works).
- 2.3 The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
 - (1) Agreement
 - (2) Letter of Acceptance, Notice to proceed with the works
 - (3) Contractor's Bid
 - (4) Contract Data
 - (5) Conditions of Contract (General and Special)
 - (6) Technical Specifications
 - (7) Bill of Quantities
 - (8) Drawings
 - (9) any other document listed in the Contract Data and all the Addendum issued as forming part of the Contract.

3. Language and Law

3.1 The language of the Contract and the law governing the Contract are stated in the Contract Data.

4. Engineer's Decisions

4.1 Except where otherwise specifically stated the Engineer will decide contractual matters between the Employer and the Contractor in the role representing the Employer.

5. Delegation

5.1 The Engineer may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities to other people except to the Adjudicator after notifying the Contractor and may cancel any delegation after notifying the Contractor.

6. Communications

6.1 Communications between parties which are referred to in the conditions are effective only when in writing. A notice shall be effective only when it is delivered (in terms of Indian Contract Act).

7. Subcontracting

7.1 The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Engineer but shall not assign the Contract without the approval of the Employer in writing. Subcontracting does not alter the Contractor's obligations.

8. Other Contractors

8.1 The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the Employer between the dates given in the Schedule of Other Contractors. The Contractor shall as referred to in the Contract Data, also provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The Employer may modify the schedule of other Contractors and shall notify the Contractor of any such modification.

9. Personnel

- **9.1** The Contractor shall employ the key personnel named in the Schedule of Key Personnel as referred to in the Contract Data to carry out the functions stated in the Schedule or other personnel approved by the Engineer. The Engineer will approve any proposed replacement of key personnel only if their qualifications, abilities, and relevant experience are substantially equal to or better than those of the personnel listed in the Schedule.
- **9.2** If the Engineer asks the Contractor to remove a person who is a member of the Contractor's staff or his work force stating the reasons the Contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the Site within seven days and has no further connection with the work in the Contract.
- **9.3** Non-employment of Project Manager and other Key Personnel shall be liable for a fine as specified in Contract Data.

10. Employer's and Contractor's Risks

10.1 The Employer carries the risks which this Contract states are Employer's risks, and the Contractor carries the risks which this Contract states are Contractor's risks.

11. Employer's Risks

11.1 The Employer is responsible for the excepted risks which are (a) in so far as they directly affect the execution of the Works in the Employer's country, the risks of war, hostilities, invasion, act of foreign enemies, rebellion, revolution, insurrection or military or usurped power, civil war, riot commotion or disorder (unless restricted to the Contractor's employees), and contamination from any nuclear fuel or nuclear waste or radioactive toxic explosive, or (b) a cause due solely to the design of the Works, other than the Contractor's design.

12. Contractor's Risks

12.1 All risks of loss of or damage to physical property and of personal injury and death, which arise during and in consequence of the performance of the Contract other than the excepted risks, are the responsibilities of the Contractor.

13. Insurance

- **13.1** The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end of the Defects Liability Period, in the amounts and deductibles stated in the Contract Data for the following events which are due to the Contractor's risks:
 - (a) loss of or damage to the Works, Plant and Materials;
 - (b) loss of or damage to Equipment;
 - (c) loss of or damage of property (except the Works, Plant, Materials and Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and
 - (d) personal injury or death.
- **13.2** Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Engineer for the Engineer's approval before the Start Date. All such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred.
- **13.3** If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the Employer may effect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due.
- **13.4** Alterations to the terms of insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Engineer.
- **13.5** Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies.

14. Site Investigation Reports

14.1 The Contractor, in preparing the Bid, shall rely on any site Investigation Reports referred to in the Contract Data, supplemented by any information available to the Bidder.

15. Queries about the Contract Data

15.1 The Engineer will clarify queries on the Contract Data.

16. Contractor to Construct the Works

- **16.1** The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the Specification and Drawings.
- **16.2** The basic centerlines, reference points and benchmarks will be fixed by Employer.
- **16.3** The Contractor shall establish at his cost, at suitable points, additional reference lines, benchmarks as may be necessary. The Contractor shall remain responsible for the sufficiency and accuracy of all his benchmarks and reference lines. He shall take precautions to see that the lines, points and benchmarks fixed by Employer are not disturbed by his work and shall make good any such damage.

17. The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date

17.1 The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Engineer, and complete them by the Intended Completion Date.

18. Approval by the Engineer

- **18.1** The Contractor shall submit Specifications and Drawings showing the proposed Temporary Works to the Engineer, who is to approve them if they comply with the Specifications and Drawings.
- **18.2** The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Temporary Works.
- **18.3** The Engineer's approval shall not alter the Contractor's responsibility for design of the Temporary Works.
- **18.4** The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of the Temporary Works where required.
- **18.5** All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Engineer before their use.

19. Safety

19.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site.

21. Discoveries

20.1 Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly discovered on the Site is the property of the Employer. The Contractor is to notify the Engineer of such discoveries and carry out the Engineer's instructions for dealing with them.

21. Possession of the Site

21.1 The Employer will give possession of all parts of the Site to the Contractor. However, if possession of a part is not given by the date stated in the Contract Data it cannot be taken as a reason for delay in start of the relevant activities and it will not be considered a Compensation Event.

22. Access to the Site

22.1 The Contractor shall allow the Engineer and any person authorized by the Engineer access to the Site, to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out and to any place where materials or plant are being manufactured / fabricated / assembled for the works.

23. Instructions

- **23.1** The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Engineer, which comply with the applicable laws where the Site is located.
- **23.2** The contractor shall permit the employer to inspect the Contractors accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contractor and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the employer if so required by the employer

24. Disputes

24.1 If the Contractor believes that a decision taken by the Engineer was either outside the authority given to the Engineer by the Contract or that the decision was wrongly taken, the decision shall be referred to the Adjudicator within 14 days of the notification of the Engineer's decision.

25. Procedure for Disputes

- **25.1** The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute.
- **25.2** The Adjudicator shall be paid daily at the rate specified in the Contract Data together with reimbursable expenses of the types specified in the Contract Data and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Contractor, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision will be final and binding.
- **25.3** The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the arbitration procedure stated in the Special Conditions of the Contract.

26. Replacement of Adjudicator

26.1 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Contractor agree that the Adjudicator is not fulfilling his functions in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator will be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Contractor. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Contractor, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority designated in the Contract Data at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.

B. Time Control

27. Program

- **27.1** Within the time stated in the Contract Data the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works along with monthly cash flow forecast.
- **27.2** An update of the Program shall be a program showing the actual progress achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining work including any changes to the sequence of the activities.
- **27.3** The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer, for approval, an updated Program at intervals no longer than the period stated in the Contract Data. If the Contractor does not submit an updated Program within this period, the Engineer may withhold the amount stated in the Contract Data from the next payment certificate and continue to withhold this amount until the next payment after the date on which the overdue Program has been submitted.
- **27.4** The Engineer's approval of the Program shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Program and submit it to the Engineer again at any time. A revised Program is to show the effect of Variations.

28. Extension of the Intended Completion Date

- **28.1** The Engineer shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work .
- **28.2** The Engineer shall decide whether and by how much to extend the Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Engineer for a decision upon the effect of a Variation and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give early warning of a delay or has failed to cooperate in dealing with a delay, the delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended Completion Date.

29. DELETED

30. Delays Ordered by the Engineer

30.1 The Engineer may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the Works.

31. Management Meetings

- **31.1** Either the Engineer or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure.
- **31.2** The Engineer shall record the business of management meetings and is to provide copies of his record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken is to be decided by the Engineer either at the management meeting or after the management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting.

32. Early Warning

- **32.1** The Contractor is to warn the Engineer at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work increase the Contract Price or delay in the execution of works. The Engineer may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate is to be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
- **32.2** The Contractor shall cooperate with the Engineer in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the Engineer.

C. Quality Control

33. Identifying Defects

33.1 The Engineer shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Engineer may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Engineer considers may have a Defect

34. Tests

- **34.1** If the Engineer instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples.
- **34.2** All pipes, specials, electrical and mechanical items shall be subjected to Third Party inspection at the cost of Employer. The Contractor shall provide all necessary details such as manufacturer's/supplier's address and location of the manufacturing site well in advance to the Employer for such purpose.

35. Correction of Defects

- **35.1** The Engineer shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion and is defined in the Contract Data. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- **35.2** Every time, notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Engineer's notice.

36. Uncorrected Defects

36.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Engineer's notice, the Engineer will correct the defect, assess the cost of having the Defect corrected and the Contractor will pay this amount.

D. Cost Control

37. Bill of Quantities

37.1 The Bill of Quantities shall contain items for the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning work to be done by the Contractor.

38. Changes in the Quantities

- **38.1** If the final quantity of the work done, differs from the quantity in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item the payment will be made as per actual quantity executed.
- 38.2 DELETED.
- 38.3 DELETED.

39. Variations

39.1 All Variations shall be included in updated Programs produced by the Contractor.

40. Payments for Variations

- **40.1** The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a quotation for carrying out the Variation when requested to do so by the Engineer. The Engineer shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven days of the request or within any longer period stated by the Engineer and before the Variation is ordered.
- 40.2 DELETED.
- 40.3 DELETED.
- 40.4 DELETED.
- **40.5** The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs, which could have been avoided by giving early warning.

41. Cash flow forecasts

41.1 When the Program is updated, the contractor is to provide the Engineer with an updated cash flow forecast.

42. Payment Certificates

- **42.1** The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer monthly statements of the estimated value of the work completed less the cumulative amount certified previously.
- **42.2** Payments will be made to the Contractor under the certificates to be issued at reasonably frequent intervals by the Engineer. Based on the certificate of the Engineer, an intermediate payment will be made by the Engineer of a sum equal to 95 percent of the value of work subject to the conditions deducting all dues towards recovery of advances, interests, fines etc., as per terms of contract and for the cost of materials, if issued, at the term stipulated in the agreement. The balance of 5 percent will be withheld and retained as a security for the due fulfillment of the contract. Under the certificate to be issued by the Engineer on the completion of the entire works, the Contractor will receive the final payment of all the moneys due or payable to him under or by virtue of the Contract except performance security and a sum equal to 2.5% of the total value of the work done provided there is no recovery or forfeiture. No certificate of the Engineer shall be considered conclusive evidence as to the sufficiency of any work or materials or correctness of measurements to which it

relates, nor shall it relieve the Contractor from his liability to make good defects as provided by the contract. The Contractor when applying for a certificate shall prepare a sufficiently detailed bill based on the original figures or quantities and rates in the Bill of Quantities to the satisfaction of the Engineer to check the claim and issue the certificate. The certificates as such of the claims mentioned in the application as are allowed by the Engineer shall be issued within fourteen days of the applications. No application for a certificate shall be made within fourteen days of a previous application.

- **42.3** The Engineer shall determine the value of work executed.
- **42.4** The value of work executed shall comprise the value of the quantities of the items in the Bill of Quantities completed.
- **42.5** The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variation.
- **42.6** The Engineer may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.
- **42.7** If for any reason, the Contractor or his authorised agent is not available and/or the work is suspended by Employer, recording of measurements will be done by Employer without the presence of the Contractor or his authorised representatives and the Employer shall not entertain any claim from the Contractor for any loss on this account. If the Contractor or his authorised agent or representative does not remain present at the time of such measurements, after the Contractor has been given a three day notice in writing, such measurements may be taken in his absence and shall be deemed to be accepted by the Contractor.
- **42.8** Payment for the work done by the Contractor will be based on measurements recorded at various stages of the Work. The Contractor or his authorised agent, or representative shall be present at the time of recording of each set of measurements and sign the measurement book or level/field book in token of their acceptance.

43. Payments

43.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments, retention and other recoveries in terms of the contract and deduction at source of taxes as applicable under the law. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Engineer.

43.2 DELETED

- **43.3** Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in the contract, will not be paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed to have covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.
- **43.4** Payment will be made by the Employer as indicated in the Contract Data
- 44. DELETED.
- 45. Tax
 - **45.1** The rates quoted by the Contractor shall be deemed to be inclusive of the sales, service and other taxes and duties that the Contractor will have to pay for the performance of this Contract. The Employer will perform such duties in regard to the deduction of such taxes at source as per applicable law.

45.2 If any refund is received by the contractor in respect of duties on taxes with regard to this work (for materials and services) such refund should be passed or fully to CMWSSB. To this effect, the contractor shall furnish a certificate along with each bill.

46. Currencies

46.1 All payments shall be made in Indian Rupees.

47. Price Adjustment (Not applicable)

48. Retention

- **48.1** The Employer shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the proportion stated in the Contract Data until Completion of the whole of the Works.
- **48.2** On Completion of the whole of the Works, half the total amount retained is repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed and the Engineer has certified that all Defects notified by the Engineer to the Contractor before the end of this period have been corrected.
- **48.3** 2.50 % of the total value of the Works executed by the Contractor less deduction if any will be paid to the Contractor along with the final bill. The balance amount of 2.50 % of the total value of the Works will be retained for a period of two years reckoned from the date of completion without interest and this amount will be paid to the Contractor after obtaining an irrevocable Bank Guarantee for a further period of three years.
- **48.4** Any recovery advised by the Employer shall be recovered from any bill or money retained from this Contract.

49. Liquidated Damages

- **49.1** The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the Contract Data for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date (for the whole of the works or the milestone as stated in the contract data). The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the Contract Data. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages does not affect the Contractor's liabilities.
- **49.2** If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Engineer shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate.

50. Bonus for advance completion of work. (not applicable)

51 Advance Payment

51.1 The Employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the Contract Data by the date stated in the Contract Data, against provision by the Contractor of an irrevocable Bank Guarantee in a form and by a bank acceptable to the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. The guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest will be charged on the advance payment at the rate of 13.5%. The advance payment shall be governed by Tamil Nadu Transparency in Tenders Act 1998 and Rules 2000. The bank guarantee shall be in the name of consortium. The Bank Guarantee shall be in the name of the successful bidder which has been obtained on the application made by the bidder to the banks. The Bank Guarantee in the name of successful bidder obtained by any other individual /Agency/Companies for the bidder will not be accepted.

- 51.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant and Mobilization expenses required specifically for execution of the Works. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Engineer.
- **51.3** The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, following the schedule of completed percentages of the Works on a payment basis. No account shall be taken of the advance payment or its repayment in assessing valuations of work done, Variations, Compensation Events, or Liquidated Damages.

52. Securities

52.1 The Performance Security (including additional security for unbalanced bids) shall be provided to the Employer not later than the date specified and shall be issued in the amount and form and by a bank or surety acceptable to the Employer, and denominated in Indian Rupees. The Performance Security for construction activities shall be valid until seven calendar months from the date of issue of Certificate of

Completion and the additional security for unbalanced bids shall be valid until a date 28 days from the date of issue of the certificate of completion.

53. DELETED

54. Cost of Repairs

54.1 Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's act or omissions. Contractor shall attend to the defect in the work noticed during defects correction period within 3 days from the date of issue of notice to attend to the defects, failing which the defect will be remedied by engaging other Contractors at any cost and that cost will be recovered from the Contractor's money available with the Employer and balance alone will be paid when it is due.

E. Finishing the Contract

55. Completion

55.1 The Contractor shall request the Engineer to issue a Certificate of Completion of the Works and the Engineer will do so upon deciding that the Work is completed.

56. Taking Over

56.1 The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within seven days of the Engineer issuing a certificate of Completion.

57. Final Account

57.1 The Contractor shall supply to the Engineer a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Engineer shall issue a Defect Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Engineer shall issue

within 56 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Engineer shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate, within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's revised account.

58. 'As Built' Drawings / O&M Manuals

- **58.1** If "As Built" drawings and/or O&M Manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the Contract Data.
- **58.2** If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates stated in the Contract Data, or they do not receive the Engineer's approval, the Engineer shall withhold the amount stated in the Contract Data from payments due to the Contractor.

59. Termination

- **59.1** The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract by giving seven days notice.
- **59.2** Fundamental breaches of Contract include, but shall not be limited to the following:
 - (a) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
 - (b) the Engineer gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Engineer;
 - (c) the Contractor does not maintain a security which is required;
 - (d) the Contractor has delayed the completion of works by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid as defined in the Contract data; and
 - (e) if the Contractor, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.
 - (f) The Contractor (in case of Joint venture) has modified the composition of the Joint Venture and /other responsibility of each member of the Joint Venture from what is stated in Joint Venture agreement without prior approval of the Employer.
 - (g) Failure of the contractor to achieve two successive milestones.

For the purpose of this paragraph: "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of any thing of value to influence the action of a public official in the evaluation process or in contract execution. "Fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a evaluation process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Employer, and includes collusive practice among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive the Employer of the benefits of free and open competition."

59.3 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of contract to the Engineer for a cause other than those listed under Sub Clause 59.2 above, the Engineer shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.

- **59.4** Not withstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for convenience.
- **59.5** If the Contract is terminated the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible.

60. Payment upon Termination

- **60.1** If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Engineer shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate, less other recoveries due in terms of the contract, less taxes due to be deducted at source as per applicable law and less the percentage to apply to the work not completed as indicated in the Contract Data. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer.
- **60.2** If the Contract is terminated at the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Engineer shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate, less other recoveries due in terms of the contract and less taxes due to be deducted at source as per applicable law.

61. Property

61.1 All materials on the Site, Plant, Equipment, Temporary Works and Works are deemed to be the property of the Employer, if the Contract is terminated because of a Contractor's default.

62. Release from Performance

62.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor the Engineer shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards to which commitment was made.

F. Special Conditions of Contract Part I

1. LABOUR:

The Contractor shall, unless otherwise provided in the Contract, make his own arrangements for the engagement of all staff and labour, local or other, and for their payment, housing, feeding and transport.

The Contractor shall, if required by the Engineer, deliver to the Engineer a return in detail, in such form and at such intervals as the Engineer may prescribe, showing the staff and the numbers of the several classes of labour from time to time employed by the Contractor on the Site and such other information as the Engineer may require.

2. COMPLIANCE WITH LABOUR REGULATIONS:

During continuance of the contract, the Contractor and his sub contractors shall abide at all times by all existing labour enactment's and rules made there under, regulations, notifications and bye laws of the State or Central Government or local authority and any other labour law (including rules), regulations, by e laws that may be passed or notification that may be issued under any labour law in future either by the State or the Central Government or the local Salient features of some of the major labour laws that are applicable to authority. construction industry are given below. The Contractor shall keep the Employer indemnified in case any action is taken against the Employer by the competent authority on account of contravention of any of the provisions of any Act or rules made there under, regulations or notifications including amendments. If the Employer is caused to pay or reimburse, such amounts as may be necessary to cause or observe, or for non-observance of the provisions stipulated in the notifications/bye laws/Acts/Rules/regulations including amendments, if any, on the part of the Contractor, the Engineer/Employer shall have the right to deduct any money due to the Contractor including his amount of performance security. The Employer/Engineer shall also have right to recover from the Contractor any sum required or estimated to be required for making good the loss or damage suffered by the Employer.

The employees of the Contractor and the Sub-Contractor in no case shall be treated as the employees of the Employer at any point of time.

Further, the contractor has to give a declaration for the following provisions :

- i) That in the capacity of Contractor, the contractor has to comply with the provisions of Contract Labour (Regulations & Abolition) Act, 1970 by obtaining a valid license under the Act and the Rules thereto and similarly under Factories Act wherever applicable.
- ii) The contractor has to pay the wages in accordance with the Minimum Wages Act to all his / their employees.
- iii) That the contractor has to abide to recover the Employees Provident Fund and the Employees' Insurance contributions (both Employees and employers contribution) from the payment of bills every month.

(both for employer and employee) and authorize them to make deductions from the payment of bills.

- v) That the contractor has to authorize to recover the contributions towards Tamil Nadu Manual Workers (Regulations of Employment and Conditions of work) Act, 1982 fund at the percentage prescribed by the Government from time to time.
- vi) That the contractor has to further declare and undertake that in case of any liability pertaining to his / their employees is to be discharged by the Principal Employer for his / their lapse, the contractor undertake to reimburse the same or the Principal Employer is authorised to deduct the same from the contractor's dues as payable.
- vii) That the contractor will maintain the Registers and records about the Contract Labour employed under Section 29 of Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act wherever applicable.
- viii) That the contractor will take insurance policy under Workmen Compensation Act to meet out any untoward incident until the contract labourers are issued with ESI card.
- ix) (1) That no Child Labour shall be employed in a house / work site / Establishment / Other places.

(2) As per the Section 2(ii) of the Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act 1986.

"Child" means, a person who has not completed his fourteenth years of age.

SALIENT FEATURES OF SOME MAJOR LABOUR LAWS APPLICABLE TO ESTABLISHMENTS ENGAGED IN BUILDING AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORK.

- a) <u>Workmen Compensation Act 1923</u>: The Act provides for compensation in case of injury by accident arising out of and during the course of employment.
- b) <u>Payment of Gratuity Act 1972</u>: Gratuity is payable to an employee under the Act on satisfaction of certain conditions on separation if an employee has completed 5 years service or more or on death the rate of 15 days wages for every completed year of service. The Act is applicable to all establishments employing 10 or more employees.
- c) <u>Employees P.F. and Miscellaneous Provision Act 1952</u>: The Act Provides for monthly contributions by the employer plus workers @ 10% or 8.33%. The benefits payable under the Act are:
 - (i) Pension or family pension on retirement or death, as the case may be.
 - (ii) Deposit linked insurance on the death in harness of the worker.
 - (iii) Payment of P.F. accumulation on retirement/death etc.
- d) <u>Maternity Benefit Act 1951</u>: The Act provides for leave and some other benefits to women employees in case of confinement or miscarriage etc.
- e) <u>Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act 1970</u>:- The Act provides for certain welfare measures to be provided by the Contractor to contract labour and in case the Contractor fails to provide, the same are required to be provided, by the Principal Employer by Law. The Principal Employer is required to take Certificate of Registration and the Contractor is required to take license from the designated Officer. The Act is applicable to the establishments or Contractor of Principal Employer if they employ 20 or more contract labour.

- f) <u>Minimum Wages Act 1948</u>: The Employer is supposed to pay not less than the Minimum Wages fixed by appropriate Government as per provisions of the Act if the employment is a scheduled employment. Construction of Buildings, Roads, and Runways are scheduled employment.
- g) <u>Payment of Wages Act 1936</u>: It lays down as to by what date the wages are to be paid, when it will be paid and what deductions can be made from the wages of the workers.
- h) <u>Equal Remuneration Act 1979</u> The Act provides for payment of equal wages for work of equal nature to Male and Female workers and for not making discrimination against Female employees in the matters of transfers, training and promotions etc.
- i) Payment of Bonus Act 1965: The Act is applicable to all establishments employing 20 or more employees. The Act provides for payments of annual bonus subject to a minimum of 8.33% of wages and maximum of 20% of wages to employees drawing Rs.3500/-per month or less. The bonus to be paid to employees getting Rs.2500/- per month or above upto Rs.3500/- per month shall be worked out by taking wages as Rs.2500/-per month only. The Act does not apply to certain establishments. The newly set-up establishments are exempted for five years in certain circumstances. Some of the State Governments have reduced the employment size from 20 to 10 for the purpose of applicability of this Act.
- j) <u>Industrial Disputes Act 1947</u>: The Act lays down the machinery and procedure for resolution of Industrial disputes, in what situations a strike or lock-out becomes illegal and what are the requirements for laying off or retrenching the employees or closing down the establishment.
- k) Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946: It is applicable to all establishments employing 100 or more workmen (employment size reduced by some of the States and Central Government to 50). The Act provides for laying down rules governing the conditions of employment by the Employer on matters provided in the Act and get the same certified by the designated Authority.
- <u>Trade Unions Act 1926</u>: The Act lays down the procedure for registration of trade unions of workmen and employers. The Trade Unions registered under the Act have been given certain immunities from civil and criminal liabilities.
- m) <u>Child Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) Act 1986</u>: The Act prohibits employment of children below 14 years of age in certain occupations and processes and provides for regulation of employment of children in all other occupations and processes. Employment of Child Labour is prohibited in Building and Construction Industry.
- n) Inter-State Migrant workmen's (Regulation of Employment & Conditions of Service) Act 1979: The Act is applicable to an establishment which employs 5 or more inter-state migrant workmen through an intermediary (who has recruited workmen in one state for employment in the establishment situated in another state). The Inter-State migrant workmen, in an establishment to which this Act becomes applicable, are required to be provided certain facilities such as housing, medical aid, travelling expenses from home upto the establishment and back, etc.
- o) <u>The Building and Other Construction workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act 1996 and the Cess Act of 1996</u>: All the establishments who carry on any building or other construction work and employs 10 or more workers are covered under this Act. All such establishments are required to pay cess at the rate not exceeding 2% of the cost of construction as may be modified by the Government. The Employer of the establishment is required to provide safety measures at the Building or construction work and other welfare measures, such as Canteens, First-Aid facilities, Ambulance, Housing accommodations for workers near the work place etc. The Employer to whom the Act

applies has to obtain a registration certificate from the Registering Officer appointed by the Government.

- p) <u>Factories Act 1948</u>: The Act lays down the procedure for approval at plans before setting up a factory, health and safety provisions, welfare provisions, working hours, annual earned leave and rendering information regarding accidents or dangerous occurrences to designated authorities. It is applicable to premises employing 10 persons or more with aid of power or 20 or more persons without the aid of power engaged in manufacturing process.
- q) Employess State Insurance Act, 1948
- r) <u>The Tamil Nadu Manual Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Work) Act.</u> <u>1982</u>.

Every Employer other than an Employer operating a motor transport for carrying passengers or goods by roads, employing manual worker in any scheduled employment, shall be liable to pay, within such time as may be prescribed, to the Board established under section 6, for the scheduled employments, other than the scheduled employment in construction or maintenance of dams, bridges, roads or in any building operations, every month a sum at such rate not exceeding three percent of the wages payable by him to such manual worker, as may be fixed by the Government by notification;

- s) The Bonded Labour System (Abolition) Act, 1976
- t) The Employer's Liability Act, 1938.

3. ARBITRATION

The procedure for arbitration will be as follows:

(a) In case of Dispute or difference arising between the Employer and Contractor relating to any matter arising out of or connected with this agreement, such disputes or difference shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The arbitral tribunal shall consist of 3 arbitrators one each to be appointed by the Employer and the Contractor. The third arbitrator shall be chosen by the two arbitrators so appointed by the parties and shall act as presiding arbitrator. In case of failure of the two arbitrators appointed by the parties to reach upon a consensus within a period of 30 days from the appointment of the arbitrator appointed subsequently, presiding arbitrator shall be appointed in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.

(b) **DELETED**

- (c) If one of the parties fails to appoint its arbitrator in pursuance of sub-clause (a) above within 30 days after receipt of the notice of the appointment of its arbitrator by the other party, then the arbitrator shall be appointed in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.
- (d) Arbitration proceedings shall be held at Chennai, (India) and the languages of the arbitration proceedings and that of all documents and communications between the parties shall be English.
- (e) The decision of the majority of arbitrators shall be final and binding upon both parties. The cost and expense of Arbitration proceedings will be paid as determined by the arbitral tribunal. However, the Expenses incurred by each party in connection with the preparation, presentation, etc. of its proceedings as also the fees and expenses paid to the arbitrator appointed by such party or on its behalf shall be born by each party itself.

(f) **DELETED**

(g) Performance under the contract shall continue during the arbitration proceedings and payments due to the Contractor by the Employer shall not be withheld, unless they are the subject matter of the arbitration proceedings.

Special Conditions of Contract Part - 2

1. Contractor's Responsibility

The information given hereunder and provided elsewhere is given in good faith but the Contractor shall satisfy himself regarding all aspects of site conditions and no claim whatsoever will be entertained on the plea that information supplied by the Engineers is erroneous or insufficient.

2. Construction Water

The Contractor shall make his own arrangement for the fresh water required for the manufacturing of the pipes, construction of civil works and testing of pipeline as well as for the potable water required for his factory & labour camps.

3. Construction Power

The Contractor shall make his own arrangement for supply electrical energy required at his sites and the works from the Tamilnadu Electricity Board.

The Contractor is forewarned that there can be interruptions in power supply for reasons beyond the control of the Tamil Nadu Electricity Board and therefore the Contractor is advised to make his standby arrangement to provide and maintain all essential power supply for his work area at his expense. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation for any loss or damage to his machinery or any equipment or any consequential loss in progress of work and idle labour.

4. Survey

The Contractor shall, at his own expense provide and maintain survey stations which he may require to carry out the works and shall remove the same on completion of the works. The Contractor shall, at his own expense, carry out all the necessary surveys, measurements and setting out of the works and shall for this purpose engage qualified and competent engineering surveyors whose names and qualifications shall be submitted to the Engineer for his approval.

The Contractor shall for the purpose of checking the survey and setting out, provide to the Engineer all the assistance, which he may require. The surveyor shall be selected having appropriate experience and as far as possible, the same surveyor shall be provided throughout the contract period. Before commencing any work at any locations, the Contractor shall give the Engineer not less than two days notice of his intention to set out or give levels for any part of the work in order that arrangements may be made for inspection. The Contractor shall provide for the sole use of the Engineer and his staff, all necessary survey instruments and other equipment and all technicians, labour and attendants which the Engineer may require for checking the setting out and marking of the works. The Contractor shall maintain in good working order at all time during the period of contract the instruments provided by him, for the proper setting out of the works. The Contractor shall make available at his own expense, any poles, staging templates.

5. Temporary Fencing

The Contractor shall, at his own expense, erect and maintain in good condition temporary fences and gates along the boundaries of the areas assigned, if any, to him by the Employer for the purpose of the execution of the works.

The Contractor shall, except when authorised by the Engineer, confine his men, materials and plant within the site of which he is given possession. The Contractor shall not use any part of the site for purposes not connected with the works unless prior written consent of the Engineer has been obtained. Access shall be made to such areas only by way of approved gateways.

6. Return of Labour and Plant

The Contractor shall supply to the Engineer by 9 a.m. every working day a return of the men employed by him and his sub-contractors on the previous working day and all of the work on which they were engaged specifying also the number employed in each trade. He shall also supply monthly any other returns which may be required as to the number of men and constructional plant employed and the nature and type of the work done.

7. Sanitary Facilities

The Contractor shall provide and maintain in a clean and sanitary condition adequate W.C.'s and wash places which may be required on the various parts of the site for use of his employees, to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall make all arrangements for the disposal of sewage or drainage in accordance with the directions of the Engineer.

8. Restricted Entry to Site

The Contractor shall get the prior permission of the Engineer before any person not directly connected with the works visits the site.

9. Existing Services

Drains, pipes, cables, overhead electric wires and similar services encountered in the course of the works shall be guarded from injury by the Contractor at his own cost, so that they may continue in full and uninterrupted use to the satisfaction of the Employer and the Contractor shall not store materials or otherwise occupy any part of the 'site' in a manner likely to hinder the operation of such services. Should any damage be done by the Contractor on any mains, pipes, cables or lines (whether above or below ground), whether or not shown on the drawings, the Contractor must make good or bear the cost of making good the same without delay to the satisfaction of the Employer.

10. Local Roads and Haul Roads

The approach roads and other public roads in the state may be used by the Contractor to haul construction materials and equipment subject to restriction of load carrying capacity on the roads in particular over bridges and culverts. However, the Contractor will have to pay customary vehicles license and permit fees for use of public roads.

The Contractor shall plan transportation of construction materials to site in such a way that road accidents are avoided.

11. Permission for Road Cuts

Wherever the Contractor considers that it is necessary to cut through an existing road or track he shall submit details to the Engineer for approval, a minimum of seven days before such work commences.

In the event of cutting a road by the Contractor without permission from the Engineer the Contractor shall pay compensation as claimed by the owner of the road until it is restored at the cost of the erring Contractor.

Trench Digging:

Digging of trench by the Contractor beyond the length than that is specified by the Engineer shall invite a fine of Rs.500/- per day till such time the damage is restored.

12. Temporary Diversion of Roads

During the execution of the works the Contractor shall make at his cost all necessary provision for the temporary diversion of roads, cart-tracks, footpaths, drains, water courses, channels etc., Should he fail to do so, the same shall be done by the Engineer and the cost thereof will be recovered from the Contractor.

13. Notice to Telephone, Railways & Electricity Supply Under Takings / Depts., etc.

The Employer shall deposit an amount to the respective local bodies/Highways department for restoration of road surface after completion of pipe laying work. The Employer shall obtain general permission to cut the road.

Before commencing operations the Contractor has to obtain specific permission from local bodies/Highways Department when he wants to cut any section of the road. Where operations involve cutting of roads, shifting utilities etc. during the process of work, the Contractor shall also give notice to the concerned authorities viz. the panchayats/the Municipalities, the Railway department, the Electricity Board, Telegraphs department, the Traffic department attached to the police and other departments or companies as may be affected by the work. The notice should identify the specific details so that the necessary diversion of traffic may be arranged and permissions obtained. The Contractor shall cooperate with the department concerned and provide for necessary barricading of roads, protection to existing underground cables etc. met with during the excavation of trenches. The Contractor shall provide at his own expenses watching and lighting arrangements during day and night and erect required notice board such as "Caution Road closed for Traffic" etc. He should also provide and maintain at his own cost the necessary supports for underground cables etc. to afford best protection to them in consultation with the authorities in-charge of the properties and to their best satisfaction. The Contractor has to make necessary arrangements to get supply of electricity from TNEB for operating the machinery and equipments. The Employer will pay the necessary service connection and S.D. charges. The Contractor should obtain all approvals for the installation and commissioning of machinery and accessories offered by them from the respective inspecting authorities such as CEIG or CIFG etc., Fees if any, to be paid to the inspecting authorities will be reimbursed by the Employer.

14. Barricading

The pit / trench shall be barricaded on all four sides. The Contractor who has dug up the trench shall be responsible for any mishap, which may occur. Non-barricading of trenches by the Contractor shall be liable for a fine of Rs.500/- per day.

15. Length of Trench Open at One Time

The Pipe line shall be excavated in such length as may be ordered by the Engineer depending on the nature of the ground, the depth from the surface and the risk of damage to the adjoining property. The pipes shall not be covered until they may have been tested to the satisfaction of the Engineer. But in bad ground in close proximity to buildings or in other places where the Engineer shall consider necessary he may limit the length of trench so that there shall not be more than three pipes lengths from the refilled trench to the unbroken ground ahead.

16. Watching and Lighting

The Contractor shall at his expense provide at the site of work sufficient lighting and watching and fencing by night and by day and shall in every respect conform to the police regulations in these matters and he shall free and relieve the Employer, Should he neglect to do so, the same shall be provided by the Engineer and the cost thereof will be recovered from the Contractor.

17. Filling In Holes and Trenches Etc.

The Contractor immediately upon completion of the Works shall fill up holes and trenches which may have been made or dug, level the mounds, or heaps or earth that may have been raised or made, and clear away all rubbish which may have become superfluous or have been occasioned or made in the execution of the works, and the Contractor shall bear and pay all costs, charges etc. Failure to carry out the work within two days will attract a fine of Rs 500/- per day.

18. Power to Vary Work

The description of work required to be executed by the Contractor are set forth in the specification, schedules and in the drawings, but the Engineer reserves the power to vary, extend or diminish the quantities of Work, to alter the line, level, or position of any work to increase, change or decrease the size, quantity, description, character or kind of any Work, to order the Contractor to execute the Works or any part thereof, by day or night Work, or to add or to take from the Work included in the contract as he may think proper without violating the contract and the Contractor shall not have any claim upon the Employer for any such variation, extension, diminition, alteration, increase, change or decrease other than for the Work actually done, calculated according to the prices tendered and accepted in this contract.

19. Extra or Varied Work

If the Engineer uses the power reserved to him under Clause 18 above an order in writing signed by the Engineer, shall be given to the Contractor to that effect and any Work executed under such order shall be paid for at the rates set forth in the Schedule of Prices prevailing at the time of execution where such rates in the opinion of the Engineer apply. This shall apply to unforeseen items of work, which are not found in the Bill of Quantities. If the rates are not available in the Schedule of Prices, a rate or price shall be agreed upon between the Engineer and the Contractor in writing and failing their agreement the Contractor shall forthwith execute such order and the Engineer shall determine the rates or prices at which the work shall be paid of.

20. Free Flow of traffic

While executing the work, as soon as possible, the Contractor should allow as much traffic as possible on the roads/streets, by refilling the trenches cut across.

21. Tools and Plants

All tools and plants required for the work including sheet piles and timber for shoring and strutting pump sets etc. shall be supplied by the Contractor at his own cost. The rate for the relevant items of work are inclusive of all such tools and plants and apparatus required for the execution of the work.

22. Excess Materials

The Contractor shall be responsible for the procurement of required quantity of materials like pipes, specials, machinery, electrical items etc. Any materials procured for the work even though as per Bill of Quantities, if found excess due to any reasons after completion of the works, shall be taken back by the Contractor and the Employer / Engineer shall not be responsible for such excess materials. Amount paid if any for such excess materials shall be deducted from any bills payable to the Contractor.

23. Deleted

24. Commissioning of Works

The Contractor shall be responsible for successful commissioning of the Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board are followed by O&M of project for 3 years.

Special Conditions of Contract

Part - 3

RULES FOR THE PROVISION OF HEALTH AND SANITARY ARRANGEMENTS FOR WORKERS EMPLOYED BY THE GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS AND OTHER CONTRACTORS

1. The contractor's special attention is invited to relevant clauses of the 'General Conditions of Contract ' in the Tamil Nadu Building Practice and he is requested to provide at his own expense the amenities mentioned herein to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

2. <u>Application</u>

These rules shall apply to all building, pipe laying and construction works.

- 3. Definition
 - a) "Work Place" means a place at which on an average fifty or more workers are employed in connection with construction work.
 - b) "Large Work Place" means a place at which on an average 500 or more workers are employed in connection with construction work.

Special Conditions of Contract Part - 4

1. General

Before submitting the bids, the bidder should carefully go through all the bid documents, drawings and also inspect the place of work so as to get full and first hand knowledge of the site conditions based on which he has to quote his rate.

2. Accidents

It shall be the duty of the Contractor to arrange for the execution of the works in such a manner as to avoid the possibility of the accidents to persons or damage to the properties at any stage of the progress of work. Nevertheless he shall be held wholly responsible for any injury or damage to persons and properties, which may occur irrespective of any precautions he may take during the execution of the works. The Contractor shall make good all claims and loss arising out of such accidents and indemnify the Employer from all such claims and expenses on account thereof.

3. Flood Damages etc.

The Contractor may take risk insurance at his cost against losses due to unprecedented floods and other acts of God. No claim shall be entertained on this account and paid for.

4. Water and Lighting

The Contractor shall pay all fees and provide water and light as required from Municipal mains or other sources and shall pay all charges, therefore (including storage tanks, meters etc.) for the use of the works and workmen, unless otherwise arranged and decided on by writing with Engineer. The water used for the works shall be free from earthy vegetable or organic matter and from salts or other substances likely to interfere with the setting of mortar or otherwise prove harmful to the work and conform to relevant standards.

5. Rates

The Contractor shall particularly note that the accepted rates of the various items shall be inclusive of all incidental charges such as bailing by manual labour, dewatering, shoring etc. if found necessary during the execution and no extra shall be due therefore on any account during the currency of the contract, unless stated other wise.

6. Royalty Charges

The Royalty will be charged for the materials obtained from P.W.Department, or other Government quarries. Assistance as necessary will be given to the Contractor by the Engineer. No plot rent shall be charged for materials stacked on Employer's lands during the course of construction provided all such materials are removed within one month after the work is completed. Royalty or charges due in the case of private quarries and private bodies shall be paid by the Contractor.

7. Payment to Labourer

The Contractor should note, that in the event of emergency, he shall pay all Labourer every day and if this is not done, the Employer shall make requisite payment and recover the cost from the Contractor. The Contractor shall not employ any labourer below the age of 15 years.

1. Night Works

If night work is required to fulfill the agreed rate of progress and to complete the work within the period stipulated, prior written approval is necessary and all arrangement shall be made by the Contractor including lighting without any claim for extra rate.

9. Errors, Omissions and Discrepancies

In the case of errors, omissions, and/or disagreement between the written and the scaled dimensions on the drawings or between the drawings and the specifications, the following order of precedence shall apply;

- In case of discrepancies in dimensions of any item of work as described between the descriptive specifications and detailed working drawings, the dimensions given in the detailed working drawings shall apply.
- ii) In case of discrepancies in description of scope of work between what is indicated in the item of work given in Bill of Quantities and the corresponding detailed technical specifications, the latter shall apply.
- iii) Figured dimensions shall supersede scaled dimensions. The drawings on a large scale shall take precedence over those on a smaller scale.
- iv) Drawing issued as construction drawings from time to time shall supersede the corresponding drawings previously issued.

10. Equivalence of Standards and Codes

Whenever reference is made in the contract to the respective standards and codes in accordance with which plant, equipment or materials are to be furnished and work is to be performed or tested the provisions of the latest current edition or revision of the relevant standards and codes in effect shall apply, unless otherwise expressly set forth in the contract. Where such standards and codes are national in character, or relate to a particular country or region, other authoritative standards which ensure equal or higher quality than the standards and codes specified will be accepted subject to the prior review and written approval by the Engineer. Difference between the standards specified and the proposed authoritative standards must be fully described in writing by the Contractor and submitted to the Engineer well in advance for approval. If on the prior review, the Engineer determines that such proposed deviations do not ensure equal or higher quality, the Contractor shall comply with the standards set forth in the contract document.

11. Bidder to Satisfy Himself

It will be the Contractor's responsibility to satisfy himself from the inspection of the site that sufficient quantities of construction materials required for the works exist in the designated borrow areas and quarry sites.

Failure by the Contractor to have done all the things, which in accordance with this condition he is deemed to have done shall not relieve him of the responsibility for satisfactorily completing the work as required.

12. Employment of Scarcity Labour

If Government of Tamil Nadu declares a state of scarcity or famine to exist within 16 kms. of the project site, the Contractor shall be required to employ in his works for which he will need unskilled labour and to the extent his works can accommodate any person or persons certified to him by the Engineer to be in need of relief and the Contractor shall pay to such persons wages not below the minimum wage which the Government may fix in this behalf from time to time.

13. All labourers and other employees of the Contractor should be covered by a suitable accident insurance policy to cover liabilities under the Workmans Compensation Act.

14.

Electricity Tariff The unit rates and prices quoted by the Bidder in the Bill of Quantities shall include the cost of electric energy required for construction at the rates fixed by the Tamil Nadu Electricity Board.

Special conditions Of Contract Part - 5

SAFETY PROVISION

- 1. Suitable scaffolds shall be provided for workers for all that cannot safely be done from the ground or from solid construction, except such short period work, as can be done safely from ladders. When a ladder is used, an extra mazdoor shall be engaged for holding the ladder and if the ladder is used for carrying materials as well, suitable footholds and handholds shall be provided on the ladder and the ladder shall be given an inclination no steeper than 1\4 to 1 (1\4 horizontal to 1 vertical). Site code for scaffolding and ladders I.S 3696 -1996 Part -I and Part II and latest revisions to be followed.
- 2. Scaffolding or staging more than 3.25 meters above the ground or floor swung or suspended from an overhead support or erection with stationary support, shall have guard rail properly attached bolted, braced and otherwise secured atleast 1 metre high above the floor or platform of such scaffolding of staging and extending along the entire length of the outside and ends thereof with only such openings as may be necessary for the delivery of materials. Such scaffolding or staging shall be so fastened as to prevent it from swaying from the building or the structure.
- 3. Working platform, gangways and stairways shall be so constructed that they do not sag unduly or unequally, and if height of a platform or gangways or stairway is more than 3.25 metres above ground level, it shall be closely boarded, have adequate width and be suitably fenced, as described in 2 above. Every opening in floor of a building or in a working platform shall be provided with suitable means to prevent fall of persons or materials by providing suitable fencing or railing with a minimum height of 1 meter. Safe means of access shall be provided to all working platforms and other working places. Every ladder shall be securely fixed. No portable single ladder shall be over 7 metres in length. Width between side rails in a rung ladder shall in no case be less than 30 cm, for ladders, this width shall be increased by atleast 6mm for each additional 30cm length. Uniform steps spacing shall not exceed 30cm.
- 4. Adequate precautions shall be taken to prevent danger from electrical equipment. No material on any of the sites shall be so stocked or placed as to cause danger or inconvenience to any person or to the public. The Contractor shall provide all necessary fencing and lights to protect public from accidents and shall be bound to bear expenses of defence of every suit, action or proceedings at law that may be brought by any person for injury sustaining, owing to neglect of the above precautions and to any such suit, action or proceedings to any such person or which may with the consent of the Contractor be paid to compromise any claim by any such person.
- 5. All necessary personal safety equipment as considered adequate by the Engineer shall be available for use of persons employed on the site and maintained in a condition suitable for immediate use and the Contractor shall take adequate steps to ensure proper use of equipment by those concerned
 - a) Workers employed on mixing asphalt materials, cement and lime mortars /concrete shall be provided with protective footwear, hand gloves and goggles.
 - b) Those engaged in handling any materials, which is injurious to eyes, shall be provided with protective goggles.
 - c) Stonebreakers shall be provided with protective goggles and protective clothing.
 - d) When workers are employed in sewers and manholes, which are in use, the Contractor shall ensure that manhole covers are opened and manholes are ventilated atleast for an hour before workers are allowed to get into them.

Manholes so opened shall be cordoned-off with suitable railing and warning signals or boards provided to prevent accident to public.

- e) The Contractor shall not employ men below the age of 15 and women on the work of painting with products containing lead in any form. Whenever men above the age of 18 are employed on the work of lead painting the following precautions shall be taken:
 - i) No paint containing lead or lead products shall be used except in the form of paste of ready-made paint.
 - ii) Suitable face masks shall be supplied for use by workers when paint is applied in the form of spray or a surface having lead paint dry rubbed and scraped.
 - iii) Overalls shall be supplied by the Contractor to workmen and adequate facilities shall be provided to enable working painters to wash during and on cessation of works.
- 6. When the work is done near any place where there is risk of drowning, all necessary equipment shall be provided and kept ready for use and all necessary steps taken for prompt rescue of any person in danger and adequate provisions made for prompt first aid treatment of all injuries likely to be sustained during the course of the work.
- **7.** Use of hoisting machines and tacks including their attachments, anchorage and supports shall conform to the following:
 - a)
- i) These shall be of good mechanical construction, sound material and adequate strength and free from patent defects and shall be kept in good repair and in good working order.
- ii) Every rope used in hoisting or lowering materials or as a means of suspension shall be of durable quality and adequate strength, and free from patent defects.
- b) Every crane driver or hoisting appliance operator shall be properly qualified and no person under the age of 21 years shall be in-charge of an hoisting machine, including any scaffold winch or give signals to operator.
- c) In case of every hoisting machine and of every chain ring hook, shackle, swivel and pulley block used in hoisting machine or lowering or as means of suspension, safe working load shall be ascertained by adequate means. Every hoisting machine and all gear referred to above shall be plainly marked with safe working load. In case of hoisting machine having a variable safe working load and the conditions under which it is applicable shall be clearly indicated. No part of any machine or of any gear referred to above in this paragraph shall be loaded beyond safe working load except for the purpose of testing.
- d) In case of departmental machine, safe working load shall be notified by the Engineer. As regards Contractor's machine, the Contractor shall notify safe working load of each machine to the Engineer whenever he brings to the site of work and gets it verified by the Engineer.
- 8. Motors, gearing, transmission, electrical wiring and other dangerous parts or hoisting appliance shall be provided with such means as will reduce to the minimum risk and accidental descending of load; adequate precautions shall be taken to reduce to the minimum risk of any part of a suspended load becoming accidentally displaced. When workers are employed on electrical installations, which are already energised, insulating mats, wearing apparel such as gloves, sleeves and boots, as may be necessary shall be

provided. Workers shall not wear any rings, watches and carry keys or other materials, which are good conductors of electricity.

- **9.** All scaffolds, ladders and other safety devices mentioned or described herein shall be maintained in a safe condition and no scaffold ladder or equipment shall be altered or removed, while it is in use. Adequate washing facilities shall be provided at or near place of work.
- **10.** The safety provision shall be brought to the notice of all concerned by displaying on a notice board at a prominent place at the work spot, persons responsible for ensuring compliance with the safety provision shall be named therein by the Contractor.
- **11.** To ensure effective enforcement of the rules and regulations relating to safety precautions, arrangements made by the Contractor shall be open to inspection by the Engineer or his representative and the inspecting Officer.
- **12.** The Contractor shall obtain previous permission of the competent authority such as Chief of Fire services for the site, manner and method of storing explosives near the site of work. All handling of explosives including storage, transport shall be carried out under the rules approved by the "Explosive Department of the Government".
- **13.** The Contractor shall at his own cost provide and maintain at the sites of works, standard first aid box as directed and approved by the Engineer, for the use of his own as well as the Employer's staff on site.
- 14. Notwithstanding the above provision 1 to 15 Contractor is not exempted from the operation of any other Act or rules in force relating to safety provisions.

15 Environmental Protection Work

- 15.1 The Contractor shall have to take following measures during construction and commissioning of works for protection of environment as under to avoid environmental impacts on air, water and land.
- 15.2 Site Clearance

The site clearance shall be done with minimum damage to existing structures flora and fauna, electricity and telephone lines and other infrastructure service.

15.3 Earth Work and Excavation

The Contractor shall inform the local authorities / government if any fossils, coins artifacts of value or antiquity, structures and other remains of geological or archaeological interests and excavation shall be stopped until identification of cultural relics by the authorised institution is completed.

The Contractor shall dispose off surplus / waste material at identified sites approved by the Engineer. The Contractor shall ensure that there is minimum hindrance to normal activities and business. The Contractor shall avoid damage to permanent structures and shall avoid loss of standing crops along the road.

15.4 Re-plantation

The Contractor shall carry out Re-plantation on areas / on the periphery of construction sites to minimise visual impact and soil erosion. The Contractor shall pay special attention to the type of trees to be replanted to prevent fouling of water through falling leaves and bird droppings. A list showing the type of trees to be replanted will be got approved before replanting any trees.

15.5 Soil Erosion and Water Quality

The Contractor shall ensure that earth and stone do not silt up existing irrigation /drainage systems.

The Contractor shall take suitable measures to prevent direct discharge of polluted waters form construction activity into lakes/rivers/irrigation channels.

The Contractor shall minimise exposure of soil types susceptible to wind and water erosion.

The Contractor shall control run-off and erosion through proper drainage channels and structures.

15.6 Soil Compaction

The Contractor shall restrict traffic movements and use low ground pressure machines.

The Contractor shall preserve topsoil to be replaced after completion of construction activity.

The Contractor shall avoid wet soils.

15.7 Social Disruption

The Contractor shall minimise interruptions to utility services through proper planning and scheduling of activities.

The Contractor shall provide temporary roads and diversions as may be necessary for smooth flow of traffic.

The Contractor shall preferably use local labour / Skilled persons during construction.

15.8 Dust / Air Pollution

The Contractor shall provide effective dust control through sprinkling / washing of construction sites and access roads.

The Contractor shall cover / water stockpiles and storage areas to prevent dust pollution.

The Contractor shall cover trucks transporting construction materials to minimise spills.

The Contractor shall have a preventive maintenance program for construction equipment and vehicles to meet emission standards.

15.9 Noise Pollution

The Contractor shall normally undertake construction work during daytime only (between 7.30 to 18.00 hrs) and when authorised to work beyond these hours adopt suitable noise control methods during such works.

The Contractor shall maintain machines and trucks to keep them with low noise.

The Contractor shall install sound barriers and plant tree as appropriate during construction.

15.10 Construction Camps

The Contractor shall take adequate measures such as provision of septic tank/pit latrines at construction site / camps.

The Contractor shall provide crèches to working women labour.

The Contractor shall provide drinking water conforming to IS: 10500

The Contractor shall provide garbage cans at suitable fixed place and have the garbage disposed off regularly.

15.11 Aesthetic Improvement

The Contractor shall through proper house keeping enhance aesthetic appearance of construction sites.

The Contractor shall dispose-off construction wastes at approved disposal sites.

The Contractor shall repair pavements immediately following construction pipeline and appurtenant structures.

The Contractor shall remove after completion of construction, all temporary structures and restore the project and surrounding areas nearest possible to the pre construction condition.

15.12 Conservation of Ecological Resources

The Contractor shall not use farmland and forest belts as materials borrow sites.

The Contractor shall not select arable land as material borrows site. In case excavation in arable land is unavoidable, topsoil layer (30 cms. depth) shall be saved and returned after construction work is completed so as to minimise impacts on ecosystem, agriculture and animal husbandry.

The Contractor shall educate construction workers to protect natural resources, wild plants and animals.

15.13 Risk Of Accidents

The Contractor shall provide efficient lighting equipment and safety signs on temporary roads during construction and shall adopt and implement adequate traffic regulation.

The Contractor shall take effective safety and warning measures to reduce accidents.

The Contractor shall provide suitable temporary crossings to facilitate normal life and business.

15.14 Responsibility For Accidents, Damages Etc.

The care of the whole of the permanent work until their completion as defined in Clause 49 and for the period prescribed in Clause 58 and of the whole of the temporary work until their removal shall remain with the Contractor who shall be responsible for all accidents or damages from whatever cause arising and chargeable for anything that may be stolen, removed, destroyed or damaged to whomsoever belonging and also for making good all defects and damages to the said Works or to any property adjoining or any cause whatever, whether such damage or defects where occasioned by the negligence of the Contractor or not or may be or might have been discovered during the progress of the works or in consequence thereof, or shall appear to be known after the completion whereof or whether payment may wholly or partially have been made or the Works approved as supposed to have been properly done, and no certificate or approval of any works by any officers or members of the Employer shall effect

15.15 Noise Monitoring

- I. Monitoring Frequency:
 - a) During construction period: 12 times a year each time including day and night.
 - b) During Commissioning period: 4 times ad hoc monitoring will be taken.
- II. Monitoring points:

During construction period: Near construction sites, factory sites and sensitive areas.

5. CONTRACT DATA

CONTRACT DATA

Items marked "N/A" do not apply in this Contract.

| The following documents are also part of the C | ontract: | Clause Reference |
|--|---|---|
| "As Built" drawings ,O&M Manuals,Licence (Within 28 days from the date of completic | | [58] |
| The Schedule of Other Contractors | | [8] |
| The Schedule of Key Personnel for constr | uction activities | [9] |
| Project Manager Key Personnel | min. of 5 years experience and sh | onics/Instrumentation) with nce or Dip holder with 20 nould have been Project ne Project/Work similar to |
| i. Instrumentation Engineer | 3 years experience or | nentation)with minimum of r Dip holder with 6 yrs min. of 1 years of specific similar projects |
| ii) Electrical Engineer | Degree or Diploma .(Ele years experience | ectrical) with minimum of 3 |

Penalty for not employing Project Manager and other Key Personnel till the date of employment of the personnel [9.3]

| Project Manager | Rs.25, 000/ month |
|---------------------|-------------------------|
| Other Key Personnel | Rs.15, 000/ month/ each |

The Employer is

| Name : Chennai Metropolitar | Water Supply & Sewerage Board. | (1.1) |
|--------------------------------|--|-------|
| Address: No.1, Pumping Station | on Road, Chintadripet, Chennai-600 002 | |
| The Engineer is | : Chief Engineer | (1.1) |

Name of Authorized Representative: Superintending Engineer/Executive Engineer

The Adjudicator appointed jointly by the Employer and Contractor is:

The name and identification number of the Contract is:

Name of Work: Inline Quality Monitoring System in CMWSS Board

CONTRACT NO: CNT/ /NCB/WSS/GOTN/ PART- II/ 2400 /2013-14

General Description

Chennai Metropolitan Water Supply and Sewerage Board (CMWSSB), supplies Drinking Water to City of Chennai. The water is treated at different Water Treatment Plants located in the city and Water is also supplied from the Desalination Plants at Minjur and Nemeli. The water is pumped from the Treatment plants to various Water Distribution stations where they are collected in underground sumps or Overhead Tanks and then supplied to the residents. The treated water is supplied to residential buildings, Commercial establishments, etc through the pipe lines which are laid out across the city.

CMWSS Board field staff are entrusted with the work of collecting water samples from Chennai City .The residual chlorine (RC) level is checked by Metro water field staff from these locations and the results are communicated to the concerned offices. Water samples are also collected from Water Distribution Stations. In order to ensure the quality of water supplied to the public, it is proposed to install 50 numbers of inline water Quality Monitoring System at various locations in Chennai City to ascertain the Residual Chlorine content, pH and turbidity values in the city water distribution system. The analysers would have the capability to communicate through GSM/GPRS devices for instant notification throughout the day.

1.2 Scope of Work shall comprise of the following:

Supply delivery installation testing and commissioning of 50 numbers of inline Quality Monitoring Instrument (probe type) with sampling pumps, impulse pipelines, suitable enclosure etc. including performance based Operation and Maintenance for a period of three years after commissioning of the project extendable for a further period of two years.for the analyser equipments which would be installed at various locations in Chennai City water distribution system

These analysers would have the capability to ascertain continuously, the Residual Chlorine content, pH and turbidity values in the city water distribution system and communicate through GSM/GPRS devices for instant notification throughout the day.

The inline Water Quality monitoring instrument shall consist of Panel Mounted Analyzer (probe type), Sensors for chlorine, Turbidity and pH. Electrode Holder assembly, Pre Filter, GSM/GPRS Modem and other necessary accessories such as motive water pump, uninterrupted power supply, cables, etc., for the installations. The equipment should include battery chargers with 2hrs backup and communication and network facility for data transmission through GSM/GPRS

The equipment will be an inline equipment which will collect the sample automatically, test the water quality and then transmit the Values of Residual Chlorine, Ph & turbidity along with the time, date and location to a centralized monitoring station in CMWSSB Head Office. The system shall send a notification via SMS (cellular Short Message Service) to concerned officers, service technicians, and other authorized maintenance personnel on various Alarms which can be programmed on any of the measured Parameters. The system should be supplied along with necessary flow regulators, impulse pipings, sampling pumps to ensure consistent operation. The equipments should include Battery charger with 2hrs backup and Communication and network facility for data transmission

Performance based operation and maintenance contract for the above work shall be for a period of three years extendable for a further period of two years is proposed. The scope of work will include regular calibration if required, replacing/replenishing Reagents if applicable, Total upkeep of the system.

The Performance based operation and maintenance contract will include the cost for rectification /replacement of field instruments and stocking of mandatory spares of a minimum of one field instrument, sufficient quantities of chemicals for analysers if applicable. The operation and maintenance contract will also include maintenance of GSM/GPRS connectivity (50 Circuits) at all the sites including subscription

The Water Quality monitoring instrument shall have RS485 data communication output for computer connectivity. The Analyzer shall have a data logger with memory of 256k, and event logger. Contractor shall finalize the exact location of Water Quality monitoring instrument in consultation with CMWSSB Project Manager at different Sites.

The operation and maintenance would include GSM/GPRS connectivity and all related charges for 3 years along with comprehensive maintenance of all equipments inclusive of repair/replacement of defective components. During this period of three years, one resident Engineer (Degree in electronics/electrical engineering)should be posted permanently by the contractor at Head office to maintain the proper functioning of the entire project and four technically qualified staff(Diploma in electrical engineering)) should be posted in two shifts of two engineer/shift of 12 hrs to ensure continuous operation of all equipments at all locations. If required, breakdown maintenance should be carried out with additional support by the contractor for which no separate payment will be made

The cost of training programme ,to be conducted for designated Board personnel , covering, operation and maintenance of the system shall be included in the contract.

The start shall be within 7 days from the date of issue of Notice to proceed with the work.

The Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works is five months for supply and installation and 3 years Performance based operation and maintenance contract.

Description of Milestones (physical implementation of this contract)

| | | MileStone | | |
|--------|--|-----------|----------------|----------------|
| SI.No. | DescriptionofWorks | 1 | 2 | 3 |
| | | | Four months | five months |
| 1 | Supply and delivery of inline water quality measurement system | 50% | 100% | 100% |
| 2 | Erecting, testing and commissioning of Field Instruments | - | 90% | 100% |
| 3 | Testing and commissioning of the entire GSM/GPRS connectivity and SCADA system | - | - | 100% |

4.TheContractor shall submit a revised program for the works within15 days of delivery of Letter of Acceptance. [27]

5. The Site possession date shall be15days from the issue of notice to proceed with the works [21]

The site is located at the following locations:

| SI. No. | Area | Division | Location |
|------------|------|----------|--|
| 1 | I | 2 | Kattivakkam High Road at inside the Kattivakkam Complex H.W. |
| 2 | 1 | 9 | T.H. Road at Thiruvottiyur H.W. near Theradi. |
| 3 | П | 16 | Kanniyampettai H.W |
| 4 | П | 17 | Kosapur OHT |
| 5 | П | 19 | Mathur 2nd Main Road at Mathur OHT. |
| 6 | П | 21 | Thiruvengadam Street. At Thiruvengadam OHT |
| 7 | Ш | 22 | Gandhi Main Road inside Corporation Office. |
| 8 | IV | 34 | Vedantha Murugappa Street, Kodungaiyur at Thiruthangal Nadar College. |
| 9 | IV | 34 | Binny Nagar Main Road, near Corporation PC at Pallava Nagar, 1st Street. |
| 10 | IV | 42 | Senniamman Koil Street, at Depot 42 Office. |
| 11 | IV | 43 | Kumalamman Street, at ESI Hospital. |
| 12 | IV | 43 | Kasimma Nagar, 3rd Street, at Community Hall. |
| 13 | IV | 43 | Pudumanai Kuppam,4th Street, near Door No.39 |
| 14 | IV | 47 | J.J. Nagar, F Street near Corporation P.C. |

| 15 | IV | 46 | Malippu Colony, Main Street, at Slum Tenements Opp Door No.117. |
|----|------|-----|--|
| 16 | V | 57 | Walltax Road, at Old Depot 48 Office. |
| 17 | V | 62 | East Coovum Street, at Navalan Nagar Pg. Station. |
| 18 | V | 59 | Sathiyavani Nagar inside the Sew. Pg. Station |
| 19 | VI | 67 | Inside the Depot 67 Office |
| 20 | VI | 68 | Teeds Garden, inside the Depot 68 Office |
| 21 | VI | 72 | VOC Nagar, Main Street, inside the Corporation Office. |
| 22 | VI | 72 | Brightens Road, inside the Pg. Station. |
| 23 | VII | 89 | Thirumangalam Road inside Rohini Flats |
| 24 | VII | 90 | Padi Kuppam Road, inside Annai Flats |
| 25 | VII | 90 | Welcome Colony |
| 26 | VII | 92 | Mogappair East, 11th Block, near Pre. No.10/713. |
| 27 | VII | 92 | Mogappair West, 6th Block AT Brindavan Colony |
| 28 | VIII | 95 | MTH Road, Junction of Kumarasamy Nagar near Premises No.1 |
| 29 | VIII | 100 | 19th Main Road, Junction of 7th Avenue, Anna Nagar, inside Malar Colony. |
| 30 | VIII | 100 | 6th Avenue, Junction of 7th Avenue, inside Anbu Colony. |
| 31 | VIII | 100 | 4th Avenue, Junction 7th Avenue, inside Mangalam Colony. |
| 32 | VIII | 100 | Poonamallee High Road, near Shan Royal Hotel |
| 33 | IX | 111 | Thiruveedian Street, inside Corporation Library |
| 34 | IX | 113 | Darmavaram Main Road, near Temple. |
| 35 | IX | 114 | Walaja Road, near Police Station. |
| 36 | Х | 132 | Pudur 8th Street, Ashok Nagar at Pudur Govt. High School |
| 37 | Х | 138 | Bharadasan Colony at Sewage Pumping Station. |
| 38 | Х | 139 | R.V. Nagar at Jaffarkhanpet Pumping Station. |
| 39 | XI | 149 | Valasaravakkam H.W. |
| 40 | XI | 149 | Sri Devi Kuppam Road, inside the Booster |
| 41 | XI | 149 | Kambar Street at Depot 149 Office. |
| 42 | XI | 152 | Majestic Colony at O.H.T. |
| 43 | XIII | 153 | Erikarai Street at Parthasarathy H.W, |
| 44 | XIII | 170 | Ekkattuthangal at Depot 170 Office. |
| 45 | XIII | 175 | Bakthavachalam Nagar, 6th Street at 175 Depot Office |
| 46 | XIII | 179 | Rajalakshmi Nagar, 8th cross Street, Velacherry at 179 office. |
| 47 | XIII | 181 | North Mada Street, Thiruvanmiyur at Depot 181 Office. |

| 48 | XIV | 169 | Annai Therasa Nagar inside the H.W. |
|----|-----|-----|-------------------------------------|
| 49 | XIV | 184 | Jayandra Colony below of OHT. |
| 50 | XIV | 186 | Thirumalai Nagar inside Pump Room |

7. The Defects Liability Period is (a) For Civil Works

| Instrumentation Works | : 3 years |
|------------------------|-----------|
| (c) For Pipeline Works | : 3 years |
| | |

- (d) Electronic and analytical Instruments : 3 years
 8. The minimum insurance cover for loss of or damage to the works, plants, materials, equipments, physical property in connection with contract, personal injury or death is Rs.30 lakhs for occurrence with the no. of occurrences limited to four. After each occurrence, contractor will pay additional premium necessary to make insurance valid for four occurrences always [13]
- 9. The following events shall also be Compensation Events: [44]
 - Nil -
- 10. The period between Program updates shall be 30 days. [27]
- 11. The amount to be withheld for late submission of an updated Program shall be Rs. 10,000/-

[27]

- 12. The language of the Contract documents is English [3]
- 13. The law, which applies to the Contract, is the law of Union of India, applicable to TamilNadu and the law of TamilNadu. [3]
- 14. The currency of the Contract is Indian Rupees [46]
- 15. Institution whose arbitration procedures shall be used INDIAN ARBITRATION AND CONCILIATION ACT 1996 [25]
- 16. Fees and types of reimbursable expenses to be paid to the Adjudicator is Rs.2000/- per day plus boarding, lodging , travelling and other charges as per actuals [25]
- 17. The formula(e) for adjustment of prices are: DELETED --This contract is not subjected to price adjustment
- The proportion of payments retained (retention money) shall be 5% from each bill subject to a maximum of 5% of contract value [48]
- 19. The liquidated damage for the whole of the works is Rs.6750/- per day and that for the milestone are as under: [49]

| For milestone 1 | Rs. | 2000/- | per day |
|-----------------|-----|--------|---------|
| For milestone 2 | Rs. | 4000/- | per day |
| For milestone 3 | Rs. | 750/- | per day |

The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works is ten percent of final contract price. [49]

20. The amounts of the advance payment are: [51]

| Nature of Advance | Amount (Rs.) | Conditions to be fulfilled |
|----------------------|--|---|
| Mobilisation | up to a maximum 10% of the Contract value. | On submission of irrevocable Bank Guarantee (to be drawn within 20% of the contract period from the start |

21. Repayment of advance payment for mobilisation and equipment: [51]

The mobilisation advance shall be repaid with an interest of 13.5% per annum with percentage deductions from the interim payments certified by the Engineer under the Contract. Deductions shall commence in the next Interim Payment Certificate following that in which the total of all such payments to the Contractor has reached not less than 15 percent of the Contract Price or 1 month from the date of payment of first installment of advance, whichever period concludes earlier, and shall be made at the rate of 25 percent of the amounts of all Interim Payment Certificates until such time as the loan has been repaid, always provided that the loan shall be completely repaid prior to the expiry of the original time for completion pursuant to Clauses 17 and 28.

The Securities shall be for the following minimum amount equivalent as a percentage of the Contract Price [52]

Performance Security to be calculated as per Clause 34.5 of ITB plus an additional security in terms of ITB Clause 29.5.

The standard form of Performance Security acceptable to the Employer shall be as presented in clause 34.1 Instructions to Bidders.

The date by which "As-Built" drawings (in appropriate scale) in 5 sets both in 'Hard' and 'Soft' versions (digitised form - CD) are required within 28 days of issue of certificate of completion of whole or section of the work, as the case may be. [58]

The amount to be withheld for failing to supply "As Built" drawings, O&M Manuals, Licence Key by the date required is Rs.50,000/- [58]

The following events shall also be fundamental breach of contract [59.2]

1. The Contractor has contravened Sub-clause 7.1 and Clause 9.0 of GCC

The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed representing the Employer's additional cost for completing the Works shall be <u>20</u> percent or as per actuals whichever is higher. [60]

22 Payment . All payments will be subjected to deduction of retention money as stated in Clause 48 of GCC

22.1 Payment towards supply and erection of electronic and analytical equipments and allied accessories

- a. 70% of the contract price on receipt of equipment at site against production of Bank Guarantee for the equivalent value.
- b. 20% of the contract price of each item on erection of equipments and allied accessories in final position
- c. 10% of the contract price of each item after successful commissioning of equipment and allied accessories and the Bank Guarantee for the corresponding amount will be released.
- 22.2 Payment for other item:

No separate payment for dewatering and civil works shall be made for executing any of the items of works and contractors shall quote accordingly. Payment for all other items will be made as defined in the bill of quantities as per the actual at the quoted rates.

6. FORMS OF SECURITIES

Forms of Securities

Acceptable forms of securities are annexed. Bidders should not complete the Performance and Advance Payment Security forms at this time. Only the successful Bidder will be required to provide Performance and Advance Payment Securities in accordance with one of the forms or in a similar form acceptable to the Employer.

| Annex A: | DELETED |
|----------|------------------------------------|
| Annex B: | Performance Bank Guarantee |
| Annex C: | Deleted |
| Annex D: | Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment |

ANNEX - B

PERFORMANCE BANK GUARANTEE

To:

_____ [name of Employer] [address of Employer]

 WHEREAS ______ [name and address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No. _____ dated _____ to execute ______ [name of Contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract");

AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Contractor shall furnish you with a Bank Guarantee by a recognized bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with his obligations in accordance with the Contract;

AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Contractor such a Bank Guarantee;

| | NOW | THE | REF | ORE | we he | ereby | v affirm t | hat we | are th | e Guar | antor an | d res | pons | ible to | you, |
|-------|-----------|--------|--------|-------|--------|-------|------------|--------------------|---------|----------|-----------|-------|-------|---------|-------|
| on be | ehalf of | the | Contr | actor | , up | | | | | | | | | guara | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | payable | | | | |
| propo | rtions of | i curi | rencie | es in | which | the | Contrac | t Price | is pay | /able, a | nd we u | nder | take | to pay | you, |
| upon | your firs | t writ | ten de | | | | | | | | um or sui | | | | |
| | | | | _ [an | nount | of gı | larantee | ¹ as at | oresai | d witho | ut your n | leedi | ng to | prove | or to |
| show | grounds | or re | eason | s for | your o | dema | and for th | e sum | specifi | ed ther | ein. | | | | |

We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Contractor before presenting us with the demand.

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Contractor shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

This guarantee shall be valid until 7 calendar months from the date of issue of certificate of completion.

| Signature and seal of the guarantor | |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| Name of Bank | |
| Address | |
| Date | |

¹ An amount shall be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the percentage of the Contract Price specified in the Contract including additional security for unbalanced Bids, if any and denominated in Indian Rupees.

Annex D

BANK GUARANTEE FOR ADVANCE PAYMENT

To:

| [name of Employer] |
|------------------------|
| [address of Employer] |
| [name of Contract] |

Gentlemen:

| We, the | | | [bar | nk or | financial | institution], | as | instruct | ed by | the |
|--------------------|-------------|----------|----------|-------|------------|---------------|---------|-----------|---------|------|
| Contractor, agree | irrevocably | to guara | intee as | prim | ary obliga | tor and not | as S | Surety r | nerely, | the |
| payment to | | [n: | ame of I | Emplo | oyer] on h | is first dema | and w | vithout v | vhatsoe | ever |
| right of objection | on our part | and with | nout his | first | claim to t | the Contrac | tor, iı | n the a | imount | not |
| exceeding | | | | | [amoun | t c | of | g | uarante | ee]1 |
| [in words]. | | | | | | | | | | |

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between _____ [name of Employer] and the Contractor, shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

This guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under the Contract until ______ [name of Employer] receives full repayment of the same amount from the Contractor.

Yours truly,

| Signature and seal: | |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| Name of Bank/Financial Institution: | |
| Address: | |
| Date: | |

1 An amount shall be inserted by the bank or financial institution representing the amount of the Advance Payment and denominated in Indian Rupees.

7. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

(Refer Volume -II)

8. BILL OF QUANTITIES

(Refer Volume -III)

DECLARATION

- i) I s/o s/o Proprietor / Partner / Director of Do hereby declare and undertake as under .
- That in the capacity of Contractor by M/s.....
 I will comply with the provisions of Contract Labour (Regulations & Abolition) Act, 1970 by obtaining a valid license under the Act and the Rules thereto and similarly under Factories Act wherever applicable.
- iii) I will pay the wages in accordance with the Minimum Wages Act to all my employees.
- iv) The staffs who have been employed by me will also have ESI & EPF number in their names. I have to pay ESI & EPF contributions towards my staff every month. The copies of the remittance challans of the ESI & EPF contributions will be submitted along with the bill for claiming the subsequent monthly payment. Similarly, the contribution / premium / tax etc. payable to any other statutory authorities will be remitted by me directly, after registering with the respective departments.
- v) I authorize to recover the contributions towards Tamil Nadu Manual Workers (Regulations of Employment and Conditions of work) Act, 1982 fund at the percentage prescribed by the Government from time to time.
- vi) I further declare and undertake that in case of any liability pertaining to my employees is to be discharged by the Principal Employer for my lapse, I undertake to reimburse the same or the Principal Employer is authorised to deduct the same from my dues as payable.
- vii) I will maintain the Registers and records about the Contract Labour employed under Section 29 of Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act wherever applicable.
- viii) I will take insurance policy under Workmen Compensation Act to meet out any untoward incident until the contract labourers are issued with ESI card.
- ix) I will not employ any child labour in a house / worksite / Establishment / other places as per the Section 2 (ii) of the Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act 1976 (Child means, a person who has not completed his fourteenth years of age).

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR